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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased Dy
over 82% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Qur renewable enerqy
assets produce enougn
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Cur renewable energy sites

carbon saving is over 822,600

carbon tonnes this year

Number of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
N the UK

Number of sites

We owri 220 renewsable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review :

0

Cur Group was 1N & sond DOsSIton Coming ol ¢ ncrease 1n the vaiue of Gur enorgy JivISion was X
the lockdown resoonse Lo Cowvid-13, and our Dosupported vy soid operational perfermante across

bus riess has cortinued o perform rooustly IS aNd SOMe organic growtif- i newer

rroughout the yvear Thes year Ras zeen some :

unforecasied growth n value of certain divisions N ) ‘ .
We reTnac 3 sunpartive ermp.aoyer, with more than

primanly drven oy tne ncrease ir enerQy prices

s cusinesses thal we

Fern Tradirg uimated ("the Company” or togainer own and operate, and indirect emp.oyment ‘
Witk it subs dianes “the Groug”] Jargets consstent provided for hurdreds more ocople through 3
agrowtn for sharehold cr the long term, with & contracts that we nave in place. :
focus on steady and vred crable growils, ths s

A reflection on our year

arnculary irmportant aurrg more challenging ! .
B 'pe =0 S Our pusress rased £402m frorm inve

conomic corditicns. We have a civersified ana

mature bu s befithing a Group with more thar
N reven.e

:odelivered consstent reve

des.oyrment, reilinng in

12 years of trading hstory and ambition Tre G S 1 . :
7 - h i Gap i ogerersted acress the Group (2021 £425m) ar d net |
folgh e than 300 companies that ~ave : ‘ ;
comprizes more than 200 compan v Uogssels of £2.21%m (2021 fl 588m restated) ?

operated in a rarge of
ady lorg-terrm growsh for our 2T
We operata in essanba, seciors hat i ooperatng profit before tax of £431 aganst o

“tors over Mmany years
re financial statoments for the year show an '

expecied cutcore of a srnall accountirg pr ,’ Trig

we expe: io porform stesdly through market
Ity

reust performmance 3 a direat resdlt of energy

produces by the groun heing sold for nigrer orices

aunrg the year ost £0% of cur Lusiness :

cormprises renewakie energy gereraung assets such

ressurad way HIhro.gs seekng outl copariunites .n
El . -
’ az solar energ gy 2:65 and wind farms, wrich provice

new adjace ecrars provide ue

Crg-teny revenue streams These are mtentonaly

e
with a plat"orm tor cortrue 1o expand m ine with . e

) D giversifien across a range of weahnologes o mivgate
our ex.siing sirawegy. Today our Lroup COrionsas

e i a specific secior and

encrgy, progerty lerding, healthcars nirastracture,

) coniribue towards steady, pred ctaole snare pree
Abrc and house buidirg dw siorns. We have grow” . .
o o - growth, nowever, their va ues can stil be mpacied
t0 be 3 significant presence within our Most ) \ : i
- oy changes in pnaing arc demand. We have see”

estabushed seciors, producing 4 2% of tne UK's

consecuiive and ratons

NCreasaes 1N Eo'rwc, term

soiar energy anc 1.7% of the UK's cnshore wind

b
o)

B
[}
-
[o3]
w
T
vl

d energy forw

erergy cutpul, and owlding & £2€1m short ard

reed um o iend.ng busiress that facilitates the

comstruction and rmoroverren: of horres i
trroughout tre LK : !

of A% growth per anum
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Chief Executive's review

markets and starting corstruction on a large wing
added
rine additonal sites 1o our reserve power divisicn
ompared ©

farmn in Austraka. At the start of the year we

which brings us up to 26 sites ir olal [c

ten sites for miost of 2021 Theze sies have
performed ahead of expectations, generating

EBITCA of L26m (2021, £1m) durng the year.

Our successful and well-established omass

divizior continues 1o pe Srmoweit and has
delivered stacie returns since acguizition in 2015
This year, | have been particularly pleased tc see

strong perfarrnance at our newest Biomass site n

Sneverton, tast A gm which was acauires in Aol
2021, proving to be a vawasie addt o
ess Dunng the year
torEner“y facility currently urder construciion in
T beenin development for

nio e

we purchased a YWaste-

Ayrshre.
three yea
185,650 tonnes per annum of non-recyclable

Tre faciily has
rs and will ba capable of precessing over
nousenold, commercial ang industral waste wincr

would otherwize be sent @ tandhll ar expored

wiil generate 17 MWe of lows carbon glaectncity,
erough to powes 30,000 hormes It will be the first
large-scale, subsidy free waste-tc-erergy project :n
weastern Scotlang and projected conpleton date is
I eary 2024,

Cwver recent years, many of our energy assets have
been under construction which nas contnouted to
counting iosses. This s

es durmg growih nhase

our previously reported ac
typical of such business
aver wren cash generative, because finance nosts
and aceourting charges such as depreciation,
exceeded revenues Tris division Nas now reached
cur target size and sactor spiit

coord ngly this year | am pleased to report an
accounting profit before tax of £48m agamst our
budgeted small accounting profit, This sightly
larger than expectes orofit ic due to the maturity of
the portfoio and higher energy prices; resuliing in
ncreased revenue from our energy division as well

as anincrease ir inflation (as explained below),

sxashy B
wrast 1AIRAE

Ty

Sur property lending busness makes Jo around

27% of the Group and comprises snort ard medium
term secured loansz 1o expenenced property
orofessionals Tris estaslished part of our business
conunued to ceforT well, following a short peric
of stow down durirg Covid-19 wien we
mentiocally chose wrie

woar pook was 182 loans this year to i< dorrowers

G tending division nas always oparated at
conservative loarn 1o vaiue levels (below 70%), i
order tnat t manta ns access o
-

thare 15 a reduction in progerty values This
ras served the Group well since inception 12 jears
h

valuable secunty
<tr

ago, and it has coerated rough pericds of ©
ceveral times, The Group s tak ng a naturally
cautious approach when gssessing new [enaing
opgortuniies in ight of the changing ecanemic
outook. To cate, the Group has lert £2 2bn of
oroperty loans since inception i1 2010, sufferng
only £6m in capial loszes This strong track record
the result of our carefu. aoproach 1 ths sector,
corprising disciplined due diligerce, conservalye
©oar-to-value ratics and an abnlity and willngness to
sectar during tirez of

continue to adont

reduce activity 1n thie
aromic unceriainty. We wii,
this approach throughou? the coming year.

The healthcare divisicr makes up around 4% of the
Group and is broadly performing wel Our
retirerment villages busiress, Rangeford Holangs
cortinued to sell apartmemts
7 fourth

Limited ("Rangeford”)
at three sites, commerced construction
viliage in Chertsey, and acqguired a afth location
near Cambridge during the year Sales at the
Chersey site ars expected to commence m 2024,
whiie construction at tne Cambridge site i3
expectad to swart in 2023 with the first sales

cormmercing in 2026

Cur Pbre division was established in 2015 and
remzins an area of growth for the Group, now
comprising of six oparating businesses Our

residenuzl businesses, Jurassic Fibre, Swisk Fibre

fewer loans Our average
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Guganet and Alpoints Fibre are buloing urafast

Lroadband nesworks in

“ore to the premizes

regions of the LK whics have been averlon<ea by

larger operators Giganc! provides cornectv by ¢
homes and buainesses acress e UK using CiyFigre

‘
nd Dpenreach nfrastruciure anc Vanh s a software

I

evclopmen: cormnany which nas developed

propri
Frov ders ta sell conmeclivity

(L

etary software 1o allow Irtorne: Service

over whonesale enanied

retworks, luding Allocints Fiore Yorposs 1s the
UK's or.!:y dedicaed enterprize ﬁ nelwork o focus
O orov ding conreclivity (1o tusnessas - Loraon

Ir the year, cur residerta
contrued W Invest capta. in expancing ter

networks in tre Homre Counti

r
Southwest of England, and are now omboard‘ng

CUSTOMErs 1o ther networks, gensrating recur
for the Croup Our

are able to

revenus state-oi-the-art

nebworks @ mMeel customer derranc “or
higher re

more wiorking--om-home ard ncrease

acbard speads rogqured as a resull of

5
video-cr-cerrand services, In Longor., Yorboss has

sntnaed o bund and has s

ke of “bre wih a comrurment to offer 10GEbps

etoLp © 15000 buanecsses i Central candon

Whi'sT our ficre divisior rermains in a growtn phase
for the next -5 years we do nat exoect It report

an accouning proft

Towards the erd of the yvear, we added 5 rew
vtk the azquisiicn

Ehva is an

g red-macket
famiy homes 1in onaon commuter oW ard

~ VA . NP o o e im P
villages Whie tnis represcrts a very sroal carr of e

red way over

Croup, we

Inflation and Interest rates
The higrer rate of nflatior expenenced this year
haz been ’ﬂ‘-pCf“Wu!"— for some Sf tre

aga rist pxpc tons nthe

energy generated witein our energy divisio
subs d‘es, that

T INCreasing

higher va ue from the

goversiment

sorre of our ensrgy sites

tre velue of tnose sites. Howeaver, a short period of
Fran inf atior: such as Fﬁre:a_» hias very litile effect
nme rate ak w'“..ch the Croup s Dypec:ed o growy

Thiz s because tre rerewable

cerve el value from d scou
cver the time tney are exoe::te:‘; Lo
ogcrate “or, wypcally 20 ye

outicoX for ong-term infation w
imrpact o

because it would imorease the reve~us each cf our

3T oL share price ercula b

& posive

30 a

The expeced rise i mtercs rates ¢ fo

returr o norma. aftér a sign

low ra The imrmedigte mpact of tris or our
busi” expected te be oroadly neutral sinige

wntoraly struttured 56 as not to

our \;”OLIN 151

experience signtcant vae cronor whan nierest
rates cnange We conunue 1o take a caut ous
spproach with our lendrg busress where tre
reig rterest rates are feit more ciosey, and we
have tre oty 1o reduce tne nurrber of inars
Wi wre, or alter the ri proﬁ!e of ourloarns

t“roug‘ﬁ redaoirg loan o vaide ratios or paus

U

Ine

el

+

o

Gy Ly nocarian parts of me rrarket shiodia th
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Chief Executive’s review

Current trading and outlook
S'hce the year end. the
oerfermi s

Group has continues to
steadity from an operationa. perspect ve
andir I ne with our expectatiors: aibe b we Nnave
seen share price growih aheaa of target dae w the
continued increaze ' long term energy grice

forecasts, Our growth targets for the Group over

the medium and long term reman unchanged, ana

we continue to focus on martaining a diversifed
husiness that s capakble of geliverirg maore
predictable growth for sharenciders.

‘he recerty announced tlectriciiy Genarator Levy

Praye

EGL within the 2023 Finarce 3iil, wili have an

ImpacT 01 tha returms ganerated from our enargy

portfcuo over the rnext 5 years This s furthar
ciscussed n the group finance review or page 27.
Qur property lerding business contnues to

perform sirongly, with increases deptoymem 1N this

sector snce tne year end We focus on short term
i0ans {our average Current legan term s 17 monihs;
which enaples us to adapt to changes in outicox
swiftly, et this s particuia
cdrrent economic chmate

we fe “ly rnportant In the

Sul healthcare division continues
ard we

apout the opportLnhies 1o rnprove performance in

Parformance in ¢

continug 1o remamn pos tve

tris secior

Since year end, we nave cortnued (o buld cut our
fitsre netwaorks, w.th construcuos tracking in line
with cur expectations We continue to réview
opportunites for both orgamic and inorgan ¢

growth supporling our existing maragerment earms
o delvering this surategy

Ir December 2022 we have acguired the righis to

£25m of right t1© use mobile licenses from Trree
U<, this making the fi

Tiobie viriual nes

irst step towards cecorming an
twork orerator.

Our mox of business areas Fas developes over timre

and may evoive furtner over the y=ars ahead. driven
by the overarching importance we place on
meatrg the ob ectives of our sharenolders This
should nct be read as any indication of a wholesale
change ir tne sectors in whicr we operats, but 35 a
reflection of the role olayed by the strategic

mandate n protecung sharenoiders interests

Jur mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”




Our business at a glance

What we do

Fern Trading Limited {'Fern’) is the garent company
of nearly 520 subsidiarias together the (,1'(\_1;; our

Group operates acress Tve Key 4Teas ensrgy,
heatncare, le~dirg hore end heuse bulding Owver
asi twelye years we have built a carefully

cwerm‘f‘e o gr oup of operating Dusineises that are

Ched to debver long-term valug and

Growih for Gur sharerolders,

1. Energy division
We gererate power from sustanaple so

sirces and

directy 1o ndustnal
CONIUMErS Or Lo large networks Many of our

sell the energy produced etner

rerne

sl 2 2nergy site nment

INncentives,

s gua ity for ¢
YICH Teoresent En

aadtoral source of
ncome. We have a so utlised our experice in
renewsabie erergy to conztruct facit ues for sale o

ton At year enc the Grougp had

2. Healthcare division
We provice Fomes and leisure facilities 1o our

ageing population, and prvate o

provide hign-quality healtnca

in the L1<

operational <ites

3. Lending division
We lend on a short ard mediurn lerm, secured

amrber of property professionals

francing 2 erable otner business
cther res dentiai and

COmMArcial propertes.

to culd assets and

4. Fibre division
We own ard operate fibre broadban

nenwarks
20ross various areas of the LUK We culd the
retwarks ard cornect e o homeas and

DLsInEssas 16 uravdo our customers with witrafast

fitzre broadbana

5. Home building division

Curng the year, wo suct e Fouse
r acquiri~g Elvia o has a

- of developirg homres in g

e (:-::mpamy is a ful-service

Serv.ces

o then fna:

silie the ey nee'fg air

r:O”s:ﬁructitf tes cnsure ~he delivery of Qs

WOTTOans g,

Solar, wing,

. Property lending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre ) .
b
lar:{d);iTlaSZ' development villages, private broadband across Res@sﬁ;lﬂhouse
gas. financirg hospitals the UK 2

reserve gower
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Our business at a glance

The strength of our GroLup's strategy 1s ir both its pusiresses with comprehensive business ptans and

ooerationa: divers'ty and e return profile of these strong management teams. This enakles us to
susinesses Our lenging business nrovides flexibility continue tc diversify cur pusiness wthout
and strorg returns over tne short term, wrle our COMpDOMising on tne gquatly of our operations.
erergy heallrcare, ficre and home buiding Cwer the past three years, we have successfully
dvisiors offer visipility ana stablity of returng over entered the fibre broadband sector and we now
the ‘orger ferm OWI SIX Companies with excit:ng plans 1o deliver

uvitrafast broasband across the LUK

The scae of our business iz a key strengtm, enabling
S0 acguire @rge-scaie establshed operations as
well as the opportunity 1o erter new sectors with

minimal ris< 10 the whole Grouo by selecting

Sector split* - Hesltncare 1%

whing 22% -

- Property 27%

Fern’s sector
allocation

:;g"-f— Reserve power 2%
- Solar 1%

~- Fibre 5%

Solar 20% -
. Healthcare 4%

Reserve power 6% y - Landfill gas and tiomass 9%

Cther 3% 7

M M Owning and operating assets 69%
M ® Lending 31%

“Sector splis given by value, as represerted or the com pany balance shact of Fern Trading Limded




Our business at a glance

Where we operate

We are proud that tne Dusresses
with 11 our Group rrake a posiive
contrib Lot Lo society, from

gererating clean energy to the ,\_ g
c on @

of quadty niealincare infrastruclure 4\

reztion of homes and tha proy

® !
1
|

a3

@ @ k-3 ’}j\

serve sover plamts

remert villages

W Fiore neiwor<s

P
~

GV OUT EXpert 58 in trase soctors in the UK, w

v «nowiedge 1o

Apart §o o excing coooriuniles oversess, Inc.ud ng CoNsrLCing 5o ar ant wend farmis 0
=)

Austraia, Franze, Ireland, 2cland ang Firlanz




Our business at a glance

Malking a difference

We gre proud to operate a Group that mares a

oositive contribution to society acrcss the U<,
generating renewatle energy, provicing gquality
heathcare iqfrastructure and retirement lving and
deliverirg figh-sceed broadband to undesserved

areas of tne country.

Energy

We currently own 223 energy siies, producing
375GW & year. That's encugh energy to power over

a milhor homes

technologies solar, wird,
s and iardfi. gas

ier well, heping the JK

ts energy targens i

Cr compination o

reserve power, b0'oma
ch ot o]

compiement ez

meoat espective of the westher.

The Fern Community Fund :5 a8 social erterprisé run
oy the Grous, writch works to distribute corrmurity
funds generated from our wind farms. This year, the
Fern Commurity Fund has swarded 21.4m o local
communty grouns, supporten 23 ioca. un'versity
swderts through our student Scholarsh.p Fund,
and proviced a wirter fuel supsidy 10 706 resigents

wno are local 1o the Group's assets.

Healthcare

Cur retirement villages provide high-quality,
conemgorary tiving spaces, with 379
accommodation urits currently in place, and
schemes in various stages of develocoment offenng
over 500 additional accomrmrodation units.

A friendly community 1s at the heart of our

retirement villages, whicn s why o our
developmerts we grovide central facities and &
Qur residerts.

nub of social activity for <

Lending
The loans we made during the year have helped to
fund the construction of student accommodation

and much needed rezidental properties

i

il 435
um e

We extend cans to 24 lax. drivers anc

fleats to enable

continge to
them to use eectric vehicles,
reducing carbon emissions in our Captat

Fibre
Througt cur Abre divisson we are bulidd g out the

fibre ootic broadband network across the UK Four
of our maragement e
builaing cut Aore optic broadb

ams are focussed ¢n
and networks for

residential custamrers and small businesses, and a

ffth is ouilding a fibre ~etwoerk W deliver enterprise

connectivity, Qur sixth is a sofiware development

company operatng ir the fiore secer and

Crovidirg ServICEeS I OUr grodp Companies.

Withis Iris division we Fave plans o create a

network providing cornectivity to cver one rillior.
properties in the next three years, many of whicn
are in small towns ara vilages that dos't currently
nNave access to internat conneciivity ft for modarn

ways of work ng and communicating

Not only are our lbre busingsses brmmng

TREMVEC COrT they are

sy Tent opportunities for

conrectivity 1o un agl¥ige

also gererating empic
YyOUNg

apprenticeship schemes,

incradeals via tran rg acadermies anc
and are drivirng divers.ty in
Telecoms, with one of cur cormoanies having

launchied a number of initiatives 1o recrut women

iNnto e secior

Home building

Our home building dwision utiises a high

sh of susta rable tmber frame corstruction
i3 air ccurce heat purmps in ali

Croporiic
methods and insta
croperties, leacing the way in this sactor and

relping reduce carben em'ssions.

b oentl
s
fEtingss

Ho
xuiiw.ustz
sdisablisnits i




Our strategy in focus

Oy businesses

Energy

Trrough our erergy division, the Group owns and

=

ergy sies which supply gas and

nta the netwaork, az well a5 construci ng
energy sites for future sale. Of the 220
ites that we cwn and operae, 154 provde
energy, contribut ng 1o the Croup's
pc-SitsG, 1 a5 one of the a-gest producers of

erergy frIom corrmercia. scale so.ar s-1es
N the U Emer gy Sifes

gererate sabie pfoﬁfs el

e rypically expecied o
frary years, as such
Gwning and coeratimg these busireszes 's atrractive

o the GrOuc heca

at
of el potental to deliver

predictac the lerg term

Renewable cnergy sites generate oower from

sustarahle sources and el energy produced 2ither

directly o large indusiral consumers or 1o the
our renewabt

network. Mary of e energy sites also

gualfy for government Incent ves, whic resutsin a

portinn of the generawed energy venefing from

—
)]

123 that are locked in' for a soecifiea perod once
a qualfying site
been g
of the volatlity in:

s operat onal and accred faton has
ranted This ras reduced some of tne mpact

arecasts

‘g-term eregy price f
Az reyy s1es bulltin the UK do no

histonc government incenuves, we are Seemng more

t gualfy for

interest in the market far sitec xke the onas we owr

r' —~ pcrat“

Owring anc o

nng energy sites s 5 core pars of

P lar)

ur strateay and currentiy makes uo almost 0% of

tre Group's net assets T hs part of our Group ras

Did you know?

generated h.gher returns this year than expectec
it hae the

potential to provide stable returng over e 1ong-

aue to rmarket canditors but crucally
term, This combination = key to our stratedy tc

he range of Grodp
or smarsholcers

balance risk and returm across t

acuvilies o ganerats targer retyons £

“Our energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

e high-qualty erergy sites we owrni, we
@ secure long-rerm inancng from

rrig nstresm harks at comaoe

Cur rewdnne, which ~200s us to

returrs oL sharal clders exoect

Whele ou-r

encwable energy busness started lifs n
< the Group has oult

er adiacent fechnologas
rengre wind, biomass and landfil gas.
sunported b/ serve arts wh ch prov.de
o the Natonal Gria. The

power p
Group
froare dversthcation witnir this

since weaker conditions for

£

n from one echnclogy often res:.dt

ctin
in strr_:nqer prCqCT‘Cm sisewhere The CGroup aso

gairs sigrifica i frorn its scale nothis sector

as oLr BLAREeSS § 50redd across ove” 2201 s1tes

\/ reducirg the rsk o Group profiabiliy if one

suffers an cperatona. digrupt.or

if laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

L.ondon to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

sirce returning to normal working patterns we have
seern an narease in the numocr Gf panients paying

in addizon to our UK sites, the Group s devecping
sifes overseas, n jurlsdict ons that we understand
weil, These oresent an attracilive opooriunity as they @ for ther awn treatment as they face org waiting
bLid on our seclor expertise in countrnes at an ;ousts for NHS treatmert. Despite the [ifting of
earlier stage of rerewacle development. Currently ¢ widespread restriciions across the L4, Covid-19
continues 1o affect the acute care sector w.ih a

> and increased infection controt

we operae wind farms in reliang and “rance a

sclar sites in France and Austraba. We have several siressed MNb

w.Nd sites urder construction i Poland, Frarce measdres thal rema n ir place.

and Ausiralia

Lending
Durrg the year we acquirad mine reserve powar : Lendng continues w0 be a core part of our busness

plants znd one energy from waste site. Foliowing and has provded tne Grouo witi a profitable and

construciion, we sold two wind farms in F nland and cash generalve sector over the past tweve yaars.

skordy after the yvear end we alsc sold Darington This well-establishied part of our Group mairly

Paint, a large solar ste in Austrailia

cansists of property lending, wihich provides

shor-term finanang to expenencec orofessicnal
Healthcare ) 7 P

Y y wEl r e et 15 | yroe e
[hrough our nealthzare diision, the Group oroperty deveiopers, buy-to-let lanclords seeking

oridging firance; and develcpment Tnancirg,

cperaes in the privaie medical and retirement Lving ‘ ) ‘
wihich provides short and medium term financing

sectors, Our retrement living business, Rangeford, ‘
o companies

owns and operates two retirement villages in
Wiltgriire ard Nortr Yorshire and is currerily A key benefit of the scale of our Group and of the
developing three furtner sites for future 2perations, Cusingss that we have bult uo in this sector i< our
ability to rmitigate rnisk througn having a large

rurnber of short and med:um term lcans sprea

Our private medical pusiness, One Healthoare owns

and operates two privaie nospitals in Kent ana ) i i ‘ )
cross small proiects ta inaividuat borrowers, We

chively rmanagé cournterparty nsks through

Ql

Hersfordshire, provicing tre very best level of care

nmoderr, well equipped hospitat facilities. : ) )
i undertaking careful borrower due diligence, taking

el
=

“Lending continues to be a
important part of our
business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.




Our strategy in focus

ecurity over assets fypicsly o g frst ¢harge bass

and mantamn ng value rat'os

Not gl oans wiil perform as expected and tnase

conservalve loan-ic-

measures heln to mimim se thie impact of

performarce isswes o an indivigua, loan

furires mitigatec fe value that v

s ithrough @

imdividuz borrowers, relatn

which s currently spread on average across 282
loans. with ar average ~ovigua .oan of £2 3.

Fibre division

Cur fibre diaision inc aaes five ooeranona
cormparies tuilmma fibre neswerks in the UK and
one software aevelcpmant cornany.

Trrougn our resdental ~ibre bus nesses, we are

bulding new pf‘ys:c

comrurites i the U<

fibre infrasiructure in underse-ved parts of Daven,
Somerset, Corset, Wirshire, Hampsiire,

e arc the Forme
anning [t Qass over cre .

cunties
homes over the

rext three yeqrs

Build ng Tmete ‘arge networks nvohes connectinrg
large datacentres ad te:eprwome exchanges in the
LK with nores and busirngsses, effectively
replac g the copoer wires 1mat were 'audd in e Trst
ha'f of the 20th century Jurasiic, Swisk and
Goganet are verticawy INte gfa:ed, as they ootn own
tre fiore infrastruciure and alsc nave tre ens

customer relaticnstio 2s the interner service

pravider or 1527 Allpoints owns fitre infrastructure
oard ather ISPs to the Alipoints network

customer,

snd will omb
i sel connectivity to the end ¢

Through Vorboss, we are ou lding a retwork :n

London to 3.pply business-to-business (3287}

ererprise cannecliviny direct to Lusiness
customers Vorooss has installed over 500km of
Epre optic cables in London since 2020 and has
recenly laurcred a sitge 10Ghps product to
rmarket, recognising that amoitious Londan

businesses wil quickly require rore than the LGbps

cornectivity they've relied on 7o date.

We have seen rand growth n ol finre d v sicn

18 ard we expect this division w0 cortinue

ﬁ
m
~o
(@]

to become a larger nart of Gur Dds ness over time

The Gfojp expects o spend aoproxmately £1bn o
cacital by 2025w fulfiiits buila plarns
raore communiies 0 need of u

g reac”

Home building

Our new horme oa long business, Eliva ¢ a full
service hiousehbulesrn, anauirng i2nd, develep ng the
site, 3na subseguerty sellng the Fomes o

d v dual buyers, © hese sitez include 3 mix of coen

ard strive to de.ver

affordable heuses 3

higrk guality asprraticnal horres Tre busimess is

rowing fastweb proected annual tumovar of
~

250m and 600 houses bl per year forecasted

within tre nexs 2-3 years
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Faul Latham < 0% o0
Paut iz Crief Executive of Fern ang is responsinla for the day-to-day running of the
business. —le 15 asn a managing director of Cctopus Investments Limited (O17,

wiere he has worked since 2005 Oi s & key supplier of escurce and expertise
to Fern Paul's duat role ensures that this reationshic works effectvely ard in the

pest nierests of Fern's sharerolders Faul mas had vancus genera’ mangaerment

AL

nd rierral consulting rowes acress a numiser of sectors and orings witr nim

a
a wealin of iIndustry and business expenence.

e Keith Willsy ~ o T o Do o
a

Keith is an associate professor of strategy and entrepreneurship at London
Business School He also hio.ds various non-executive direciorships and advisory
roles at hign growtin ard more mature comparies. In h's role as nen-execulive
chairrnar he is rezponsible for the effectve operation Of the Board, as well
as its governance He brings to the Fern puciness ndependent commercial
experence gained frorm hs trme ir academia, private eculy investmens,
consuting and various hands-on operatiorzl roles

Poater Baviow oo

Pater nas over 30 years experience ininernational financng of infrastructure and energy.
As a senior executive for International Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
S12bn of pr\,J\_c_t and corporate funding, as well 3s pankirg relationships and treasury

actv'ties He has spert aver 20 years wo.rkmg nternatonatly for HSBC, Bank of
America and Nomura, ﬁﬂaﬂ"lr‘g acquisitons and greenfiedd projects in the energy

and infrastructure sectors, His combiration of Board-level finanang and energy
experience over Numercus energy sub-sectors, ard his al-round knowledge of

all the sectors in which Fern gperates, adds significant vaiue to the operaton o

the Board as well as 115 strategy formation and deploymrent.

Tim Arthur 50 - onoo T oL
Tim is a chartered accountant with more than 25 years’ internatioral experience
as a hra~ce director of both public and private companies intially he worked
for Price Waterhouse i Birmingham and Chicago. Maore r .e'*.tly he was Chief
Financial Officer of Lightsource Renewable Energy ctd, & gokal leader in the
furding, development and long-term operation of solar photovoliaie praeas
Tirr brings extensive firancial and accountancy knowiedge to the Board as
well 35 ar understanding of dynamic techno.ogy businesses gained from his

exeCulve positions
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Principal risks j

Meragerment dentify, assess and rmanage risks The princical risks that the Group 27e exposed o

associated with the Group's business chjectves and are casonped celow, a.cng with the mhgating

strateqy Risks anse from exierral sources, thase actions we ake to reduce the potenla. irpact of

which are mhere~t cornmercial -isks 1in the market, tne risk We a.soinclade our assessmer: of wretrar

peralona; ngks contaired within the t~e lket=icod of the nzk Pas iccre

ocesies empwoyed withn ibe

or remaired the same. '
business Cverall risk exposure s managed across

the Grolp throwgh the aiversifcation of @

botn by sector ard geoqgraphy.

Energmesion e el

Risk Mmgat:ons

A e et e

Market rlsk . Cc Al

oy

h f'x tri m-",:;'r =

Cte ara eniersd 1IN0 W

The energy seCtor is expanarcing ooricn of the enargy gerorated oy our
9 H Sy Y §
sigrifcant turtulerce and there 1z s Lorg-term gov r‘nmeht bacred offiaks ag-eermeris are ;

T

sueh as tne Rerewable Do, ga i Cerufioation

"ROCT) stherme 3C% of our energy mOome was

wholesale erergy prices, off-taxe gererated frorn ROC revenue

COMTaCis OF governmen: subadie * We engage with the ar-vm'nrrnm aricl the Offee of Gas and %

ansk that forecast levels of ncome Irc.ace
are ot aceved due o charges m

5

Due 1 th s trbuent envronme nt, Flecmicity Markats (OFGEM' G cormmnmue 1o an industry voice Increased :

trie potenia. for Ncreased with policy riakers who set fUtare regLLaiony requirermients. (g 1 market !
. : Irataility]

rierventicon by the regulsior s aiso - 7

a s

Charges in Government policy

may resut nreduced incomie i
strearns witt i the group cue to %
addinonal levies. :

Operatlonai risk: « Lrpgreo ctab Uty of *he weather s mingated throagh :
Levels of energy produced may diversacaiion of lechrniclcgines and iccat.on Cf . :
be wwer than anfiZipatec due to « Regular servicing of assels s underiaksn to onsure assets b

sLb-optiral weather condit-ons SIE K apr Im good conditon and miririsa the nek that .
Cor parformarde ssues win assets are unavalla'e ‘or aonger pencd “
equIpTan, whiich may result e

SIgNINCaNT UnpaTines dow

Financial risk: » Maragement ensure

s oy asmal oortor of the Grous's
ar e gerveg from

Construction risk: » e Groub e

Aters fixed or .2 contracts with Conlrations
Conziruct ar of the simes 1a<ec AFIErE GTRISDIISNE 3 rad JCE EXEOE I8 1 M easin: [

ONCEr O 5 rOrE TO5Ly
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Risk

i g b A i 08 A B R & W B S RIS s ko2 T

Market risk:

Expecied saes from cLstormers
are lower than ant c.pated due to
mcreased competit-on from other

PICVIOErs,

A change in ooucy oy the
requlators i favour of arger
cperators couta imoact our aoility
to deliver planned developrment,
reducing revenues and eficencies
gs‘m@d frorn a larger oresencain a
oarfi ular area

Constructlon rlsk

Corstruction of the nebwork
takes longer or1s more costly
than anucipaied due to resource
availabulizy or -ncreased cost of
raw materials

Operational risk:

Network service 1s interrupied or
urrel able iead-ng o potentia loss
of customears and reputational
camogﬂ

Mitigations

« Management reguiarly reviews Thp fomret tive landscape
in target build areas to ensdre pians o nat conflict with
otner alkernative rnetwork operators.

« Managerent engsges preactively witn the Office of
Comrrunicat-cns and the Governmens (o ensure the
benefts of smaller operators are weil undersiond and 15
nterests are approgrately represonted

« ‘We are an aclive part-cipant in redevant industry bodias,
pariicularly those representng alternasive netwark
ODErEIOrS

. The sroup has cortracted witn a numoper of different
supplers to reduce the exposure WO any one INdvIduat
entity Selectiorn of outsource pariners s managed
throwgh a detalled procuremrent process with long term
visibility of work allowing partrers to plan inancial and
people resources accordingly,

. N'ﬁerL auup ; chain D(cbler‘fs are expected for critizal

‘echmca cqu pmefwt w:th lor'g ‘ead tmec

. Our retworks are bw t.n a resilent way with diverse
route ootions should a fallure cccur in one route,
This, combined with an abiity todentfy and resolve
orrectivity 1ssues guickly, monimises downtime of the
Networks

e
famaene e
a.:“,mrﬁgﬁmmm 2 o
pHEG e
HEE T e e R Mg“
e
LETE e
et
e H

o

SRR Tig

z '&5&%& 5 3 a3 4

3\; ‘igtfx‘gu&$ i 5 5 Bl rai g

B3R st Tues wmmzé?‘;ﬁ’i i f

‘%&R’*Q%-"! ;s‘x% 5% 2 ng R0 ER g RERR HDKE ! &4
Bt Ihagtt e eininit il

Change

e v v e s R A % B B DN T A 2T

ncreased
(duc to more
campetitons n

the market)

Increased (due
to increasng
demand for
resource in
the sector as

alternative
network
providers scale
busld)

e

Ne change




Mitlgatlons Change

et s : ey L PR R .

Market risk: » Theteams pro-acin

FTANage Dur positon N in

rrarketpiace and are prenareg o enieree where vweedec. If

v

Imcreasing irflation and rieres
a oy o S N
sates lead & market-wide wan maeves Nt defaurt
o Ourtoans are made at conserva

affcrdab lity iss
drap in proper ratios with @ maxemum LTV of 7

Y
sectors of reat estate

b Dar-to-vaiue (TV) P
o/ SRR

NO Charge

RIS May
moact cur aml Ty 10 recover a
warm full through a2 refinance

or sale

Counterparty risk: « Loans are secured agairst p ys cal ur derlyn g secmzy‘
Loans may be made o unsu table Sucn as a charg ert

couUNtarga
amlty to rec

impacting cur Sorrowsr The
ser the loan paanc ensuUre meax mar

+

rfuli. chion be necee
. incressed ‘due
« Thorough due QlLgancs s perionmed onor 1o wr ting Jnctasle
lcans, including ,Jropénv Orand va.uanons ang crean ECOrCMiIc
rhecks dore o borrow chmate!

« Wreere inars are writle

stagas are u_,rr*ﬂtete pror o re‘w:

S0 U HeatthearefHome Building Divisions U
Rlsk Mltlgatlons Change

Market r:sk (Healthcare and . Planmrﬂ corsents on undevewoped
Home Building): RAXITSE revenues and reducs e s %
A fallir house prices could

TNRAct Qur 3biiiy 1o generafe o unstane
teq reven e from the szie elolalntanrte
rimerrs in our retirerment < rrate)
villages and houses buit by Elvia,

Corm ey

Construction risk {(Healthcare o Tre Groap enters fixed price contracts where ancroonate
and Home Building): 0 reduce exoosure to increasing matenat costs, N
ConstrLgr on takes longer or o The Group only works with reputatle 3rd paries ywam a R
5 rnore ooty than annopated strong race record of delvering simi'er Drojects NG crange
due O resoLICe avalablity o
gazed ooy of raw marer.
Health and Safety r:sk o Tre Grodn mar
{Healthcare): relaing o tne grov s on of
Frougn Conduoung regu-ar InEm
G oexternal msCecic -
. PR
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Risk Mitigations

Market risk: « Where flcating rate debtt is 10 piace iwhere interest vanes

Anincrease In base rates may I iine with an undertying oenchmark rate], the Group

ncrease costs on debt facilties, enters Into hedging arrangements to fix a portion of thes=

rnpact ng the Group's abiiity to payrments throughout the termr of the faciuly Hedging due ta rse in

service debt as it falls due arrangements are cuthred i Note 21 of the Ainancial iterecl rates,
statements.

Liquidity risk: + Adetziled cash flow forecast is pregarec and reviewed

Poor management of casn within by management on a morthly Basis, 1ncorperating cash

the Croup could impacs the avallability and cash reguirements acrozs the Group. On at

Group's abiity to meet oblgations least a quarterly bagis tus s shared wath the Board

as they *zll aue + The Group monitors bank covenants o0 an ongomdg Bass

1Q ensure coninued adnerences to covenants, Wrere
covenants can't be met. forecasts are updated for the
lower cash avatabie as 3 resuls of the restrictior.

+ The Group has a fiexibie Arance facility which can be
drawn or at short notice to mest mrediate business

neecs.
Health and Safety risk: = We have deve.oped rabust health and safety potic.es
The safety of our empioyeas comp:ance with 15045001 across the Growp lw ensure
and those emiployed tnrough the we'l-baing of our staff %
contracts are of paramoun: « Heaith and safety training is provided 1o our sta and
importance. There s a ns< that contractors or a regular basis. Increased
accidents in the workplace could
resull i serous injury or ceatn.
Cyber Security risk: « We empioy a Chief Information Secunty Ofcer (15S07)
A atiack on our 1T systemns and whio s responsibie for data secunty acrass the Group anc
data could iead to disrupton reports quarterly to the Board —
of our operations and loss of + The CI50 works closely with our businesses to ensure L
cJstomen data, Loss or misdse atlequate standards of security and information Mo change
of data may result i reputational maznagement are met

damage, regulatory action under « Cach of cur businesses that hold customer data has the:r
GDPR and potential fines own cedicated resource for T and secunty

The strategic renort was approved Dy the Board of Direciors on 16 December 2022 and signed on its tehalf by

PS Latham
Diractor
1€ Deceriber 2022
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Corporate governance

Section L72 {1} statement

The Beard consider that th c_{ have adhered o the
raquirerrents of sectior 177 of the Compan.es ACT

2006 (the "Act’), a~d have, in goad faith
‘o oromaore the

cactedin a
way tral would be most likaly
success of the Group for the benes: o it meTibers
as a whole thaving regard 0 all staxero!l

matters set cutn sectuon L/210a-f) of tre Actl

T
faken during the year ended

ir ne decisions

: gerformance of iz duty to promote the
e Group, the Boaro nas regarc o a

atters, ncluding tre txely

of any decitions - the ong term,

= views of the ehoiders

Greun s key stae
ard ensure © fully undersiands the
potential impacts of the decisicns T makes Tne
Board *

committecs and <

utfils these duties partly by delegation o
~e boards of subsid ary

wrdertakings, wino operas

governancc framework across

£ wWithin a corporate

the Group

At every Board meeting a rev ew ¢f healtn and
328 the group, f'r‘ancw’ai and ocperatonral
and regulatery

uricietaken. The Board alss eview

performance, as well as egal

'
=
0
D
A

urie ¢ the fSnancia. year
ul

re.uding SIness strategy, <ey rsks,
0 Cdivaersity andarcusiv iy,
orate responsb iy, arda
~d lega. matters.
Principal decisions
We defre princ.oa’ decisiors taken oy e Boaro as

cisicrs that are of a strateg'c naure ard
Sur key sta<enoder

rinat te following are

Sors trmaage o e year

ard

‘r—rrr_na s} wiro

« Evaluat—g

our renewalles givis o in Augu

Groun acauired a arge scaie. ready 1o consirucs

wind site in Ausyala This deployment 2.8
with tme Croup’s sirategy O conirug e

develop renewable erergy sites wh ch orovide

cred:ciable, long-term revénuea sreams The

Board consaered the cpporiunsy ana how it

zligned with cur ob;ecives Lo Mma<e a posit.ve

“ONCDUTION G tie commidnity and environment,

The L dec:ded
dvisicn, holse buiidin

Yoo expand ints our
2022 ke Group

newest

rg. in May

acauired Elviz horees, g full-service property

developer, orovial ices frorm the aesgr,
to tr o engreen- fen fingl constrachcn
1o ersure the oe\:v‘ery G guallty workransnip

Biversitying the Group's a3sat case aﬂd Satt=haigls
o=

M this new sector has been well thougnt

growihin ming The Board

e
<
=,
é
5
=
3
il
=
A
=
=
fie)
=

i Jrites within t

cecichng to nrove ahead with thig
SCGLEsSINON, FC-"SZ’}* h"(} AN H’WIC WUl rm aCt
exIsting busiressed within the div s on ang how

el

It alignod wits the Group's strategic obyective

w

deliver long-terme va.lue arg pregiciable
Iders

Grown
for our sharehc
~g to move ahead with
whiCh < pa
our renewsbles aivis.on, in Occher 2021 the

Rewewing and decid

Creasing omass Operations rt of

Group acourred a large stale, wast2 eneqy
construchon ste 1~ Scotand This de;\cymen:

a'igns with the Groun's strategy to confnue to

Ziveraity the Group, davelop "enNewanie enerdy

sites which orovige prea ctabie, long-term

and emarcrmeny,
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Corporate governance

» The board deciced to change audit firrrs viz a
tender process for the year ended 30 Sune 2022
Tre Greup had changed sigrrficartly since the
previcls auditors were appointed ard -‘herefo'e

we were unable to reliably assess the va.ue for
morey we received Three frms underwenrt
the tender pracass and Ernst & Young LLP were
ceiected because of their strong commercal
Lunacrstarding o cerficient audit

methocology and value for money

our business

Business strategy

Chur busitess strateqgy is set out or pages 11 to 14 of

the Strategic "eport. Manragement prepares a
etaled Group nudget whicr is aporoved Ly the

Board on an ansual basiz and forms tne Gasis for

—

he Grouc's resourc
fec
usiness piar, the Board has regard first and

forerrast 1o its strateqic focus, but also to other

e planning and deployment
ions I making decsions concenng tne

%3]

[G NN o1

of s varicus
ng-term mgact of its
future and reputation.

matiers such as the nteresis o
stakehoders and the (o
actions an the Group's

Shareholders

Shareholder relations and generating shareholoer
vaiue s a key corsideration when the Board is
making strategic decsions. Tne prime medium by
which the Group communicates with shareho.ders
1s through the annual report and 9nancial
statements, which am to provide shareahoiders with
a full understarding of the Group's activiias and 118
rezults. This information 1s puplished on oar website
at www . ferntrading.com

Employees

The Groug's employees are fundamental to the
overall success of the busness, The Directors “ulfl
their duty to employees by entrusting aversight to
subsid ary Boards which the Chief Executive of the

Group alsc sits on

The directors ¢f the
manage the day to day decision malurg,
engagement and cornmunicaticns with employees

subsidiary undertakings

e N LT T

and ensure that people are treated fairly and are
valued with respect 1© pay, benafit anc conditions
We fully realse tnat our emp.oyess with to be
informed and consulted on matters afecting thar
work ana to e inve.ved in proklem-solving
afecting their own areas of nterest ard

raspons bility The Groug s irmly committed o 4
palicy of good commuricat on st all levels and we
Al o establ sn g climate which consianty
encourages ke ope‘:n flow cf informatior and

ideas. &r
at a2 lecal level and the cun

esenty the includes monthy team briefings
ncation of rrothy key
performance irdicalors covering output, operating

costs, and headn and safety,

The nezlth and safety of cur emiployees in the

wor<place s a continual focus for the C‘ up gvar
itz broad operational cusness, The Direc

Health & Safety Reporting at each toa

IS review
rd meeting to
ensure appropriate policies and procedures are in
place t¢ protect the heaith and safety of cur
empioyees ard contractors Wnere there are
cotentia, cefclencies or issues, these are folowed
up and resoived on a tmely bas:s, with the Board
naving overs gt of the acticns taken,

The Group cutsources actvities and management
perahor

Whiiere activities are ocutsourced the

of certain o [ activities 1o external supphers
Board enzures
that they are managed by reputable suppliers who
meet ait the relevant irdusiry and regulator
commitrerts as well as treating empioyees fairly.
Expected standards are documented in all service
contracts and acherence to these are continually
monitcred by Board thraugh their service
agreemerr with Octopus Invesimenis Limited.

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts in a fair manner with ait supglers

and customers and seeks 1o mantan srong

business relaticnships with therr. This is achieved

by all contracts be-ng negotiated through a fair and
55 which inciudes

on the long-tarm objectives of

ansparent tender pro
as5es |r]g the H‘ﬁud

o .
SIS L e b
R

SiSesd EIEREY
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Corporate governance

the Group. We review QUr Rayrmen: Crocess rg
raCis every SIX monthis o esure
pt‘ na this informat on
e on the www.gov.uk

tmes aaamst Cont

suppliers are pad pr

ary
the company 3 avalab!

The Srouo enswres v acts farly and s a fransparent

\C«
mannear to all customers across all divisons and

services, and actively engages o resalve ary disputes
or dei

metrics 2

gtz The Boara closely moninors customer

anc endages T the manggement tean ©

25S percrmancs does

uncerstand tne issues i ousm
“expectatioris

rnct Meel customars

L:mited

resporabilty for the orovision of operatfonal
Hary

fa — N
nnanc:

OVETSIgai, istrattor and corr

secretana servi

Community and environment

Tne prov sion and aperation of sustairabie
of the Croup's

nes the

rfrastraciure is at the centro

strategic goas. Through ite business actiy

Group seeks to make & positive confrbution o the

COMMUNITY, 2

Y.

nvironment and econarmy Cur

renewable energy busness s helning the U< meest
our private hespitals

cughoot the Covd 15

Its rerewasle energy targetz
poried the NHS th

pandermic oy providing

have suo
eatmiant for non-Cond-19
NHS patients that otherw:se could not have been
cur fibre n WE pEoDe
in rural comrm_m’twes cee

carned cut, an nehwerio will g
$s 1o hugh-snead

oroadiband.
Business conduct

As Direciors our ntenuon s 1o b4

SNSUNING METEGET e Coersld the

iregrity ard »n atcordamoe wiln

of conguct and goverrance expected of a pusir

TEES
neruon through aur basiness

sach as ours Garin
»\tc‘,—l‘/

ectors and

11 to 14} 18 10 operate
businesses trat share

oudiried on pag

Wor<ow i other

(5]

our values

Business ethics and governance

Tne Board 15 responsible for ensuring that the
activitiae of the Group and 18 various Dusinesses are
ducied N complar‘ace with tae law ang
applcave go

ir adherance with prevalirg best pract

cor
ernance ard reguiatory regimes, and

e for the

£y

relevant industry. Thiz includes review rg irternal

—

centrois, ensur ng that there s an appreoriate
Calarce o skils ard e

card, and ensanng that the francial st
Sive a true ana fair view of the srate of the

o, Furt-er detall can be fourd in the statemn:ent

exgenence represenited on tha

of affars

directors responsibiit
50 Jurnie 2022 no areas
dnthis

—
Qy

e}
o]
]

efard

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

T

he Zoard's po

ICy On ermployeg, human r gnts,
SOCEl and CoOT MUY 1S5URS, EMMTONMEnt DOiCy

and ant-corruchon and oribery ma

i e Drecnors P\epom o)

aclively promaoies a co

ori ethical values 2nd benawours
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Group finance review

Review of financisl statements

The purpose OF this regort is (o provide additorai
exslanatcry informanon on the inancial statamenis.
e finendcal

have been

1 mesgsuring our oerformance, in

rmeasures that we Lse include tnose that

derved from our f-ﬂpﬁr*&(‘ esults 1In order to

al~iinate ‘actors tnat distorn YEET-ON-yaar
comparsons. These are considered non-GAAR

finarcial rmeasures.

A recanciaion of these to the firancial results can
be found in note 28 of the notes to the firancial
statermnerts :

The financ al statermerts snow assers at cost, as such

they dorot reflect thie future value that we expecttc
derve from these pusinesses To that extent :

accounting performance may differ materially from

the share price and may not reflect chenges 11 the
full
the Group

mMar<et vawie of 335218 Or businesses owned by

A numter of acgusitons were maae durnng the
year, including rine operatonal rezerve gower sites,
a waste w energy sité under constructon, a

in Austratia and
seventeen solar roofioo sites under constructon.

tly after the year end, in July 2022, we sald

construction re '”V wind fasm

als’s

Dariington Po.nt, a large solar site in Australia

coninJed expansion, we had oult up
rves at year end of £256m whicn ncluded

cazn inflow of £9/m from placing exterra;

=

ehirancing n Carlinglor Point onor  sale

(restated) Movement
2022 2021
£'000 £000 £000 %
Revenue 711,830 425 302 286,528
194, 916 104 036 90, 8&0 37%
Hfoﬁt ( l0s5) De fcrc tax 47 604 (22 663) 70,26/ 310%
L r‘ncmg ook ,nm o! provisions) 360,901 385 512 (24.611) (0%}
\,ash 256,415 172,478 457
td bt 793,169 659,440 1.5%
F\ef assets 2,219,448 1,887,842 331,607 18%
Financial performance E425m) whicnt was predominantly driveri by & 84%
Qverall the Group has reporied a profit before tax of - §Increase n revenue with.n our energy division Tnis

£47.6m for the year erded 30 June 2022, whnich is a
£70.3m imorovement on the prior year (2021
E22.7m loss restated) Overail EBITDA increasad by
B7% 1w £195m (2021 f104m restated), which i
pr\marwly due to increased energy gereration as well
as INCIeased enargy pnees.

Revenue increasad by £287m to £712m (2021

‘Earnings before tersst, ax, deprecist’'on and amortisation

growtt s twao fold, ircraased er
from having owned/operated or
planis for the full year and 3 large
ustraba reaching commission:ng; and a sigrnifican
Australa reaching com g and a sigrifi

‘Lrgy generation
of our DICMass
zolar plant in

INCrease N average enargy prices cver the
1o the mismatch between supply and demand,
ted by the ongoing confiict in Ukraine.

year due

exaceros
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Group finance review

Reverue growth was strongest in aur energy
divis'an bul we also saw a rarkec improvernent in
evenue from our retrerment vidages, Tnis part of
our business nas rebounded well frorm the
lookdowns required by tne Covid-19 pandem ¢
response selirg 41 units in the year ncrease of

S2%) and an moreas ng o revanue o

Vi)
£204m (2021 £12.7mj

Revenue from our lending division saw a drop of
25% 10 E42m (2021 ES7m) due to a smiziler average

toan oook over 0

Our exp i the Torease prima

by increased operating costs i our fbre dision a:
ha;exparme Refinancrg exlerna. depl o

cacure
seCu

q\
3
j

5 over the pas
SCr INterss] Cests &

Tine resulis this
o on e saie of
oncf £1.6m o

yaar s e proit of £28m
two wind farrs in Finia~d
de’er

rBrevioLs

red consderation

years.

Financial position

Conbnued sharehaolder rterast and rvestment has
w10 £2,2159m (20217 £1 828m
erded 30 June 2022, we
iscued 120m shares 12020 156m} for & total

on of £204m (2521

ErE :‘r“ciqde £L,553m cf

seen net assels gro

restatedl. ir the year

consigerat’

Co r“r‘p atve year numi

on rela

Lrg (G group rest

of £RA0Er (2021 £e5HIm restated;

£‘_4"m reflect ng the reductor in
N Tk

S0ress

R

£342m) wh

long-
1Lsues 1o grow Ine tusiness 'We have invested

e

Encing ard o

the qbre broacband secior over

suzsrantiady ino
tme past four years which wil reguire furtner capital

exgenditure over the L NCreasr g our

& next 3-5 years

diversificgtion acrss sectors
Of the cash ha at yvear erd, E211m was helg i

uitding anc fore subsidianes
maer
under way, requirng cash o

aid a
our energy, Nome Dy

Qo

of construction and

ctaqe payrents due .nthe
rmoning a

Goodwil, a1 E541m (2021 £56 /7
SgTAaCant nuTnDer on the
eet and arses on the gogusition of seme
CAcoured cusinesses, for example

contnues to be a

balance sk

iteg, often niave a marke valus

il @XCOSS

of the company's net assets, reflectirg
treir relak.e fuire incorae

orly ident

SUCEMS, ACCOUTIING

corveontion rGF‘U”*Q thar «
narmed on the halance sheer 5o tne

canrct

ordg ithe baance of tne
the f

rec

vaile wrich corr uture

are expen
GRCESE O
as solar

tsimoly, e

eneralio

nousinesses or ingeed any Goeraticfai

3l reflezis th

of smply buying tengib.
5 ofowind wrkimezs We Cay
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Group finance review

Sector §1§£i‘§*f€§§’%ﬁé%§’§i:ﬁ

Energy P{2021 E196 restated), partially anven by increased
site ~osts where £120m was incurred at our
bicmass sites and £93m at our reserve power sites,
Loon

As econocmic activity and gicbal demand rcreazed
throughout the year, 20 ton did whalesate eriergy

prices, oriver: by movements in comrradity prices, the prices for raw matenals have increas

average, by 69% due 1o an increase in the suppy
cos:s. The comoined cost of sales for the reserve

whicn resulted in the overall increase in reverue
earned across our energy sites, These marke:
factors have resulted Iin an increase Ir revaniue of
RA7 o £5094m (2021 E322m,

power and bomass sites increased by £110m 1o
£217rn (2021 10/m). It should be noted that the
revariye generaed by the biomass and rescrvo

Correspondingy, EBITDA also increased by 112% to . d oy £19 L e .
o . wower sites increased o 32m durng the year to
E26Erm (2027 £126m restated) reflecting the b 4 9 s

. E353m (2021 E16Lm).
sigrificant increasa in energy revarue. Overall total

oueraung costs roreased by £230m to E327m

FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FY2G21

Production Procdiuction External External

{(MWh) (MWh) Availability Avallablllty

Siorass 1,050,038 885,585 84.6% 82 2%
Candfill Gas 240,226 256,026 97.9% 9763
Reserve Sower 403,355 141 286 94.2% G2 0%
Solar 554,858 517112 97.7% 36 0%

Wind 851,214 881,241 90. 5% 93 1%

Tota{ 3,099,690 2, 682 019
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Healthcare

Healthcare cperations contribute
(2022
reflecting tre impact of increa
Rangeford
vitlages have

dt4em

2 o Group reverues for the year

sed revenue in

rat
reguired by the Cowid-19 pandemzc response
selling 41 urws in tre vear fan noregse of 52% from
2021 and increas ng revenue by £76m to 220 Zrr

{2021 £12 7m0
Lending
Revends from lending decreased by S14mn o £42m

(2021 £57m) primearily due o a smailer average

Qar o

ook icr 2022 wrick resulied 1In a decreased
fo

o the year. The ofal loan &

3

36im atthe year erd (2021
uctonin the can Coox en

o'm;' Tﬂ.s red
cash to ke avalab.e for coporiunmtics acrcss other
sectors wathon tre G C including acguisiicns and
coor. Tre rmra<e-uc ¢of the ican book nas

tri
red sligndy where we have 1ssued a “igher

%)
J
0 D

numbzer of smaker loans wirtin the residenua.

sector, as well as rmore larger loarns in the
developmen? sector and the commercial secior.

£e DA f: the wending civision decreased to 2 loss
rorm g orofit of neary 21m n the onor
year This movement reflects a orovis.on of £25min
tne loan noaok against loans 1o reserve power s1tes
a DrovisIon against a realthcace lcar of 214,
In the year 1o June 2027, Z39m was prov ded

against loans versus £21m ir the prior year

Fibre

As a relatively new cwision, all e Fore tusimesses

i

e e buid phasp and are st a'“‘ﬁ-g 0 add

vizion Nac bleld passed cver LSC,C-” G rorras We
1o contnue for g furiner

SXpOrSes as tre
hw ard des
"‘ﬂg“ke\ resence C;J-rrdh e d VISIGHY Teportes ar
EBT 24 ings of 'L E25.5m loss), which
is ir ine with exgpecations and
deveopmental stage of the division

slop

reflects the

As we puild these

recognised o0 the balance shee twhich

annotincde future valug which 5 expected o be
generated as the assets have baen internaily
generated This s gifferent 1o the shave price whare
the future vai.e expecied o pe gene

353ets is includea

Home building
Eivia Hornes was acqguread in May 2022 anc has
therefore nad irited impact on the iranc al

performance dunng the yvear Tne busines

& s
forecast to de

er £E78rm revenue and £6 b
EBITDA for the year ended 30 June 20273 Results
busimaess

from the first quarter of 2023 indicate the

o

Is broadly performing inane win expectations

Funding and liquidity
Cur strategy £ o seclre long-erm francing at
conservative levels from mamsirearr banxs to

ernance retdrns from our rerawabie energy

busnesses, At year end we haa £1,044m of
exiernal uraje:t firarc ng with 2441m of

headrocm ava labie

as predictable Cost Dase, reverie sireams,
government incentives or proven tecn
s.Ch have wower returns tha
be mzufhcent for our sharencld

0

no.ogy and

twitnoul weverage woud

OWS US

stralegy wouLs fave 4 MegElve M pact On DJUSiNgss
retLrm ana srareholger vaile over the lorg term.
Apar“xlfr teyy 80% of our terest payable 15 fixes

and trerefore we are net g g
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the current interest rate volatiity We contirually Depéoymem inwo fibre cortinues to roll oLt in line
review financing arrangements to ensure inat they P owith expeciations and the Group has now passed
are competibve and ogtmised for the needs of the 1 more than 150,000 homies by our fiore networks
business. 70 ensure cash is manages in an agile ! Sales actwity in our healthcare divizior remains
marniner, we rnantain a flexible finance fac:lity ¢ostrong, with nearly 40% of anrual sales budget

wrich can be drawr dowr or repaid o mee?

immed.ate businezs needs

Looking ahead

The Grous has rebounded well from the effects
the Covid-19 pandemic and has outperformed

expectations Whilst tna current econcmic outioo<

15 one of cralenge ard uncertanty, we anticisate

miniral impact on cur resulis due to tne

predictatie revenue strearrs and cost £ase, and
essent.at reture of our activites. Coupled with the

diversificat'on we have built uo across the business,
we are positioned strongly for these twrbuen:

times ahead

We continue to pay particular attertion o the twn
challenges of rising interest rates and surgirg
inflation — both interms of lendirg and portiolio
managemert, These trerds irpact ail areas of tre
Group's business and are Tkely 1o reman for tne
foreseeable future, so we remain disciolined .n our
nvestmeant approach, continuing o mornitor the
situatio
ary cu

r carefully and taking a prudert approach to
rrent and emerging risks.

We are positive apout the cantinued opoortunty
for growtn and contirue to believe that the
business s positoned well to take advantage of
future grow,
ar=as. Erergy, lendng and house building
oparatons are well esiablisned in the market and
continue to rake excellent progress witn robust
perforrnances in the new financiai year. i lire with
our planned strategy. since the yeas end we sold 3
large solar farm in Australia for 3 smail profit, with
proceeds beng redeployed irto new opporiunites.

vth opportunities across its core Dusiness

already completed or reserved across ail s1es as at

Seniermnber

the end of Seo

Arnourced within the auturnn statement as par” of
the 2027 Tinance Ll the UK Government will
enact a 45% winafal tevy UElectricity Gengrator
Levy" or "EGL) or
revenues in excess of E75/MWh
appiy o the Group from 1 January 2023 1o 352
March 2028 The exact legislation wil be publshed

rwholesale energy market

This s expectes to

n mid-Cecember 2022, but based on the nital

release an impact analysis has been garformed
as at Septermoer 2022, We estimate the
to be a crop invatLauon of approximately £45m
sites affected, whicn contrbuted 10 2

=0

WA

impact

2.0:- decr ase In the share prnce to 1/770p m
December 2022

We expect to generale sirong aperat rg returns
from cur estabished dwvisions for the coming years,
N acdiion to the antcipated outflows for our
consiruction phase assets The nealthcare and
fibre divisions are well into their buwild chase in lire
with cur long-term
strong returns aver

strategy and we anticipate
the rext five 1o seven yea

upon maturity.

PS Latham
Direcor

16 Cecember 2022

sy

srai
m,w;,fi‘e

i%
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consclidatad financial
statements of the Group for the vear ended 30 June 2022.

ror a surimary of the Group's resuts, refer (o the

Groug frarce review o7 page 23
The directors have not recommended payment of

a divigend (2021 ENIl

mgany wha were in office
o the date of signng the

HJ Wiilley

[nlg

]

-G Sarow

®

T Artnur lacponted 1 Juy 2C22)

e 23 1n the Notes to e fnancia:

.

e Strategic Repari on page 12

L R S N

Refer to the sector 172 statement on gage 21

. B A

The Group's ogectives and policies en inancial ris<
mafag@ ont ircluding inforrmation on the

S the Group to credit risxs, gL
~nJ market rizks
fnand

y [
dity rsxs

are set outin nowe 21w the

al statements The Group's or ncipal nsks are

set oul i the strateqic report on sage 16

P BN

A3 permreittea by secton 414¢ (11 of the Compan.es
Act 2006 the drectors nave s.ected 10 discid

rforrrahior required to te in the drectors’ recort
by Schedut
armpacies and Grouss (Accounts and Reporis)

e 7/ of tne 'Largs ard Mecivm-sized

Regulations 2008, in tre strategic report

The sSoarc recogmises that a corporate Cullure

ssed on sound ethical values a2nd behavioars s an

hie Group endeavours w conduct 1S

DLSIress with nn:r*rw iman ethical, profess

and responsibe manrer, realing o.ur errpuoys

cuUsICmers, supoiers and parisers with couriesy
and respect

FE T S e e - -

Apgiucations for empiloyment by disaclec persa-s
ara given full and far consiaeraton fcr all
vacancies, hav ng regard to thew partcuw.ar sptindes
and abilties. Snculd a person becere disanles

Wit e i the Group's e oymer:, every efort

3

‘ .
rMage e

im them i1 emL.oyrrert, gy rg

zlternatve trzin'ng a3 necessary
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

o be
crsued on matters atecting ther
rvolved in problem-solvirg affecting
of interest and responsibility

We fLlly realise tnat our ernsloyess wisn ©
vorred ans
worg and to b

their own are

The Croup s firmily commiited 10 a policy of good
and we aim to estakisn
a clirrate whicn constantly encourages the open

fiowe of Information and ideas. Prazently this

commun:caton at all levels

ncludes maontkly team brnefrgs at a wocal lever and
the publication of m
ingicators covernng cutout, operating costs ang

ontrly key serformance

neaith and safety

The Group has in place an agreement with Octopus
Invesimerts Lim-ed to provide services 1c the
Group covering operauona: oversign
adrmin.stralion, company secretarml
accouning

and company

The Board adopted a formal environmental, social
and corporate governance ("ESGT) palcy on

30 Seplember 2020, The Group recognises tne
business, in a manner that is
the ervirorment

need 10 conduct its

resgponsicle to . wherever possible,

As a low energy user, tre Company has elected not

to disclose gata on its en

Ferr Trading Limited is the

rgy and ca
only Company in the
Group that meets the reportnig criteria and
therefore no Infermation 15 provided for the Group

rbon usage,

as a whole

The Groun's has an At —Bnbery Poiicy which
introduced robust pro

compliance with the meer] Act 2010 ang to ensure
that the righest standards of professional ethical
conduct are mantained,

dures ta ensure ‘Ul

in accoraance with the recemmeardations of ~he UK
Corporate Governance Coage, tre 3card has
corsidered the srangements r place to encourage
staff of tre Croup or manager of the Group to raise
corcerrs, in confdence, witnin their crganisat on

fin

about possicle impropnetes in matters of financiai

reporting or other rmatiers 1Lig satished that adeguate

arrangements are in place to allow an mdependent
nvestigation, and follow-on achon where necessary,
to take clace wathin the organisation.

We are co
integrty nall our business dealirge ard
relatonships ard to moelementirg and enforcing

rmractted to acting ethically and with

effectve systems and cortrols 1c ensure mocermn
stavery 1s NGt @xing place anywners In our Gwrl
ousiness or Ireany of our supoly chamns, cons:stent
with our cbuaganons unaer the Modern Javery Act
2015, We expect the sarme high standards from all
of our contractors, supp‘uers and other ousiness
cartners. As pars
expect our supphers
Slavery Act 2015

four contracting processes, we
to comoly with the Modern

The directors are resporsibie for prepanng the
An=ua: Report and tne Aranciat statemenits in

accordarce with applicable law and regulator.

Company law requires the directors to prepare
finanicial staterrents for each financia! year. Under
triat iaw the directors have prepared the Group and
Comgany nancial statements :n accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Practice (Unsted Kingdonr Accounting Standards,
compnsing RS 102 "The Financial F:epomrm
Standard apnlicable in the UK ane Repullic

Ireland”, and applicable law) Urder company law
the drectors must not approve the financ.al
swaternents urless they are satisfied tnat they give a

Accounting
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true ana farr view of the state of aftars of the Grown L S

and Company and oF toe profit or loss of the Greuo As permiited by the Arncles ¢ Association, the

and Comparny for that period. In prepar ng the

financial statements, the directors are requred to

» select sutable accountng pel ces and tren appy

= state whetrer appiicao\e Unied Kingdomr
Accourtin
Leer foliowed, su
dizciosed and explaned in tre financial
sigierienis;

any maiera

e make udgemen estimates that

are reasonable ard

e prepgre the inancal statérrents on the going
CONCErn osasis urless it s inapprogr ate to
presurne that the Group ana Company wil.

continae in bus ness.

Tra directors are also res
the assets of the Group and Comparn

-
o
>
!

for taxing reasonabie stess for the prevenuon and

detecticr of fraud and oiher zrregu‘.ari:\es

disclose wih = e
rd Company and

fnancia troqﬂo of the Group 3
erable them o ensure Tha the Ana-cial siatements

comply with the Comoanies Act 2606,

@ maintenance
and mtegr*\/ of the Co*rwar.ys cosite Leqgislauon
N e i goverming the preoarah.on

ana dissemination of F~ancia. siatements may d

fro legisiat

d rectors have tre benet
2 qualfying trrd-zarty moemnity provisio
definad by secticr 234 of the
The inde oree throughout ©
financial year and s

of an mder“zmty wiich is
nas
Companies Act 2006,
mrity wias in f e last

curently in force,

f each drector in office at the dae the

eportis approved

v SO faras lne orecior s aware, there 5 no relevart

a.d u nforrmation of whon the Group and
Compary's aqdiiors are unaware, and
s trey have ta<er gl tne ot “;; s that they cught

to have akenas & or in arder o make

airec
trernzeives awere of ary relevant audi
that

nformation and 1o establis™ the Group ana

Company's audtors are aware of that mformation.
Y

Ths corirmator s given and should oe interpretec

in accordance wth the provisions of secton 418 of
the Companies Act 200

LLP havniy beer appfjm*eh in 2022,

Ermzi b Young
have naicated ther wizingras

o be reappointed

far anotner terr and wilt ce proposed for re-

rdance with section 485 of the

The Directors resart was approved by tre Boarg of
Sirectars on 16 Deceriber 2022 ard signed on it

enalf by
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinton

We Fave z.dited the financal statements of Fern
(’:he Parent Compemy"- and its
j far the r ended 30

) Statement of

Trading Limitec
subsidianes {the
June 20z
Comprenenzive 'ncorre, tre G

Croup’

wicn comprise the Grous
oup and Farent
Compary Saiance Sheet, the uroup Staternent ¢°
Casn Flows, the Group and ~arent Statement of
Changes in Equity and the reated nosss Lo 25
nciuding a surnmary ©f sigrificant accounting
T has
prlied in their pregaration s applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standarcs
FRS 10
Standard apglic
treiand” {_nited Kingdom

Accounting Praciicel.

policies The financial reporting framewaor< tha
heen
including 32 "Tre Financial Reporting

a2ble .nthe U< and Resublic of

Ceneraly Accepted

(=Lt

I our op'nion, the financ.al statements:
gwve 3 true and fair vew of the Group’s and of the
J 2022 and
ed,

T

Farent Company's aifairs az at 30

of the

)
il
Group's profit for the year then

en

9]

« nave been properly presared in aceordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Practice and

¢ nave been prepared in accordance with tne

reguirements of the Cempanies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

jucted cur audit in accorcance with

(1SAs (LK)

and applicable law. Our responsib:lities under those
stardards are further describec i the Auditor's

responsibilites fo f of the financial

staterments section of our report. We are

independent of the G

We cong
Interrstonal Standards on Audsing (U<

or the aud

i Group 1n accordance with the
ethica. requirernents that are re.evant 1o our audit of
the firancal statermants in the UK niciuding the
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we nave fufilied our
other ethical
these requiremerts.

responsitilities in accorgarice with

evidence we Nave
rovide a

We beieve that the audit
obtained i<

basis for our

sufficient and approprale to p
opirion
Conclusions relating to going congcem
In audarg the hnancial stalermnments, we have
concluded tnat the directors” use of the gairg
pass of accounung in the preparanon of
e fnancial staterrents is aporogriate

CCnoorn

Bazed on the work we nave performsd, we have
rig. unceriaimties relating o
collecuvely,

tidentfied any mate
littors that,

events or cond ndividually or
~ay cast significant douct on the Sroup and Farent

Compary's anility 1o continue a3 a3 gQoing cordearn

for a period of tweve months from when the

financial staterrents are authorised for 1ssue.

Our responsibilites and the respons-bilives of

oinQ concermn

the drrectors with respecttc g
are described in the relevant sectons of this

report. However, oecadse not all future events or
cond tions can be oredicted, this statementis not a
guarantes as to the Group's adility to contnue as a

Cs"‘H"(1 coneenn.

Other information

Trie otner infarmation comprises the nformation
ircluded in the annual regort, other than the
financ-al statemenis and our auditor's report
thereon, The direcors are responsiole for the other

information contained witnin the anrual report

mMents doeas rot
cept o the
itly stated in this recort, we

Cur cpinion an the financal statem

cover the other infarmancn and, ex
extent otherw'se explic
assurance conclusion

co not express any form of

thareon.

Qur responsibility 15 1O reac the otrer infarmation
and, in doing sc, consider whether tre other

the
staterrents or our knowledge ctlained in

information 1s materally ‘nconsistent wth
financial

v 1
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the course of the audt or ctherw:se appears to he
materally rmissiated. if we dent®y such mater al
irconsistercies or apparent materal misstatements,
we are required to determine whetner this gives rise
o a matenal messtatement in the financial
staternents themszelves. If, based on tre work we
have perferred, we corc.ude that there g 3
rmaterial misstaterment of the other informauon, we
arc required o raport that fac

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opintons on other matters presoribed
by the To ?Qé‘iﬁi g Aot 2008

Fa

Irour opiion, basea o tre work Lraerakaa iy

e tne informaior given Ir the Strategic report anc
the Directors’ report for the financial year for
which the inancial statements are preparec s

cons stert with the finarcial staterments, and

legal requirements

Maiters on which we ars reguired to
report by exception

In the light of re know.edge and understarding of
the Group ard the Parent Compary and its
environment eotaned in the course of tme audit,
ererts 1

Drrectors” report

we have not identified material m
the Strategic

resort or

We have nothing 1o report i respect
following matters 1o relation o whick e
Corpanes Act 2006 requiras LS to repar: o you f
irour ogpimion

COLNING records Pave not teen kant

Guate for cur audt nave wot teer

O
H
—
]
L

"~
]
i
Ll)
i'L‘

disclosures ¢f Directors renuneraton

.
[
M
-
~—
I
3

ar2 not made; ©

—1

e rformanon and

regurre for our audin

Responsibilities of directors

As exglarried more fLily in the Directors’

1\

respensibil ties siate™ent el oot on pages 29
3() ihe Directors ave responaible ‘or the pre
the financisl siate

Darauon

rnents and icr peing saushed
wat they gve a true ard far view, &nd for such

internal caontrol as the Thireciors determime s

rnecessary to erabie the preparatior ¢ Trancal

stafements g free fromm maenal

w

m sstater ent, whether gue to fraud or error.

In prepanng the fnarcial staterients, re Direcltors

the Grougp's and the

are responsiole for assessng
Farent Company’s at:hily to continue as a going
corcern, disclowng, as apolicable, maters related
to goirg corcerr and us g the

basis of accountng Lness the

6]

Going corcern

Direcmors aither

]

Intend to vguidate the Growp or the Parent
Compary o to cease operatiors, or have no
regostic ale we oUt o o sC

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audiz

of the fnancial statemeants

QJr chjectives are to obtar reasanatlie assurance

abcJt whether the fnancia, statemnents as a w-oe
are free from material misstaterment, woetrer due
o fraua or error, ard 1o issue an auditor's report

r. Reascnatle assurance s

L hut sncla

guaraniee that
nce with 15As (U

N

ordda
rYEEEement wWnen It

* raud or errcr
arad are considered ma;erial if nctividastly or onotne
susregae, they 2ot reascenacly be expeced o
influence the economic ceasicns of usars taken on
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[

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considered capable of
sietecting bragularitiss, including
fraad

Irregu.arities, including ‘raud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regutations We design

rocedares in ling with cur responsitislies, outlined

apove, to detwect iregularities, including fraud. The

rick of not derecing & material misstaternent due o
fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resuiting from error, as frad may invoive deliberate
concealmert by, for example, forgery or intentoral
rnisregresentations, or through coitusion. The
etent 1o wrich our procegures are capable of
detecting irregularites, including fraud s detaied
below. dowever, the primary responsioicty for the
oravertion and detection of fraud rests with both
those cnarged with goverrancea of the entity ard

management.

Our approacr was as “cllows

We obtained an understanding of the legal anc

regulatory fr that are applicable to the

Group and determined tnat the most sigruficant

reporting framework (FRS
s Act 2006)

ameworks

are those trat relate o
ard the Comparie

-~

02

e We
omplyng with those ‘rameworks by making
engunes of management, those charged with

derstood now Farn Trading Lirnited i

governance and those responisiole for legal

and corrpliance procedures as o any fraud risk
framework within the entity, including whethe
fraud nisk assessment s completed. We
of the
ricrmance of the

a formal
corrohoratad cur enquiries through review

followirg documentation o pe

following procedures,

+ obtaining an urderstanding of entity-leve!
Contro.s

Cotro.

ard considering the influence of the
environment;

» obtaning an understanding of policies and
procedures ir place regarding comiptance
with laws and reguiations, incli.d.ng how
complance with such oolicies s maeritered
ana enforced; obhtaining an undesstanding of

management’s process for identfying anc

responding o fraud risks, inciuding programs
and conirols established to addrass risks
denufed, or otherwise prevent, deer and
detect fraud. and how senior management
monitors those programs and contrals,

rmeating

morutes in thie penod

» We assessed the suscentbility of the Group's
financial statements to mateia. misstatemeant.

hcw fraud might OC y helding
! wh\ch ncluded:

- identification of related parties,

= uraerstandirg the Groug's busiress, the
contro. envircnment and assessing the irherent
risk for relevant assertions at tne sigrifican
account level including discussions witn
managerment to gain an understanding of
those areas of the financial statements which
were susceptible to fraud, as igentified by
management, ard

» corzdered the controls that the
establishen to address nsks icentfied by
the entity or that otherwise seek 1o prevent,
deter or detect fraud ncluding gaining an
urcerstandirg of the entity level cantrols ang
polices that the C

Group has

araup apples.

» Basea on thus understanding we des
audt procecures to identfy nen-comrpliance
nons Owor procedures

nvolved testing of journal entries througn
journal analytics tools, with focus on manual

gred our

with such laws and regular

o

Siiadhe

e
S

e P

w4 54

henirry

tiziha

i
% 4

Thi
i‘i’iiiu?m q 543
1 :;«W it
?mm eiantal
4 3




gk
)

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large or unusual transactions, or journals

meeting cur defined risk criteria based on our

understanding of the business; tested accounting

estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,
If any, with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reperting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report,

T
S R I - S

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state

t

to the company’s members those matters we are
reguired to state o them in an auditor’s report and
for no other purpese. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Fonshito Z\LJ_IO

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and an behalf of Ernst & Young LLP. Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the yvear ended 30 June 2022

{frestated)

2022 2021

‘ L . MNote: £°000 . £'000
:Fum“;vermm S LTS 58 45 S LR £ ‘x“; "“47‘11,830 — prrprs

(410,883) (2?1 ?77;

Grossprofit 77T 300947 204025

Aurmms rdtUU CRRODSS (258.251) (231 844)
Operating prohtl(ioss) S - N mlzis@s (27819) )

Othesr incorme 1 3,550 G454

(mto 5EES

)

Income from other fixed asser investments 5,249 449
Share of operating orofit in joinl venture - 1755

Prefit on disposal ¢ subsidianes and jomnt venture & 29,533 28,568
Ctrer interast recewame and sirnilar Income & 130 997
I'm:r@“? By frmh: ]r*d g 3] (33,554) (36, 0671
thtmoss) before taxah;_m e es e e s s e e e s oo 47"22)4 .M.,.(z? i
Vax on oraﬁtﬂl: f,:\ 7 (16,294) {8.349)

Proﬁtl(loss) for the fmanc:al yeari o 31,310 (3L.012)

Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27,005)
Minority interest (6 622} 14,007
31 31.0 (31 012}

All resulls relaie o continuing achwities Note 26 dertails the prnar pencd adjustrments.

Group statement of comprehensive income for the vear ended 30 June 2024

{restated)
2022 2021

‘ . s P N PR o gk R AR PIGRRRR RS E R BEA B A 2% i A S b At Bk B K RO R £roo° E'OOO
Profit/(loss) for the financial year sz
Other comprehensive income o S
Moverrents M cash flow hedges 77,985 44583

Foregr excharge gain/(loss) on retranslstion of subsidianes 18 561 333)

Other comprehenswe income for the year 96,546 44 6“0

Totat comprehensnve income for the year 127,856 o 13 658

Attributable to
s Owners of the parent 134,478 17645
s Non-controlling interests (6, 622) 4.007}

127 856 13 638
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Group balunce sheet ags 21 30 June 2022

- it 5 PPN AR AE e 8 She %A Shes e A S e bee aamp o

Fixed assets

Current assets

sSlocks

Crabteors [nchudimg F138m (2
after more than one ye

e

Cash at oank and 2 nand

Cfedltors amounts falilng due wn‘.hm one year

T T TR T N N NPT e SO A

2022
£'000

...2 435 590um

3 557,708
9 1,893,430
10 35,452
12 184,479
13 623,161
11 256 415
1 064 055

14 (256 152

I

irestated)
2021

E'CO0

576,739
1581682
11,600

g4711
598,002
17¢ 478
86 19’
(2r ‘2 ()59)

21659421

Net current assets 807,903 663 1 ;
Total assets less current ltab|li-1-:-|es 3,294,493 o “? 83? 353 .
Creditors: amounts fallmg due after more than one year 1 (992,425) I 19033 9‘
Provisions for liabilities S (826200 (41372
Netassets 2,219,448 1887842
Capital and reserves
Called wp share capimal 12 161,662 145,676
Srare premiurm account 364,882 173118
Morgor reserne 1,635,569 1.440,257
Cash How hadge resere 63,006 114,979
(2 770) 136, 049
Total shareholders fu;ds ' VZ 222,349 ‘ 1 884 141
controll - g e (2.901) 3721
Capltal employed 77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 2 219,448 7 1,887842

Note 26 details the pror per od adustmenris

These conscldated financial staterments or o G2 w

O

cages I
i b

25 December 2022 a-d ave s.gnea oni trer beralf by
PS Latham

Cerecter

Registerac namper L2E01636

oved ty the Board
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Company balance shest as ot 30 June 20622

2022 2021
Note £'000 E000

PTTE ML N enGRMRC R R AR R LA AR P P 2 R -

leed assets

2539978 2,116,366

Current assets

2 539 978 2,116,366

Debtars 13 39,888 50,383
Casn ef barnk and In nand " 6,422 1 sz
Crednlors amounts fatlmg due mthm on;‘year S 14 W(ﬁ4;9)" v(w?éééfi)v
Net current assets o T &5,861 28 982
Total assets less current llabllltlme:mm“ . 2,585,839 N 2 145 748 R
Net assets " 2585839 2145348
Capital and reserves

“al.ed up share caprat 13 161,662 145676
Share prerniurm account 364,882 173118
Merger reserve 1,986,457 1,791,145
Prﬂﬁt and loss accaunt 72,838 31409
Total sharehéia;;funds7WWWhmmﬁﬁmwmm o o ”-2,585,839 m2m145m348

The Comgany has electad to take the exermption unaer section 408 of the Comparnies Act 2006 not to
oresent the Company proht and loss account. The profit for the financial perod dealt with ir the finangial
statements of the Comuany was £236,742 000 12021 toss of £157,504, 050]

These financia: statemernts on pages 35 10 52 were aporoved by the Board of crrectors on 16 December 2022
and are signed on ther behalf by
PS Latham

Director
Registered number 12601636
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Group stetement of changes in eguity Tor the vesr ended 380 June 2022

Called up Share Merger Cashflow Profit Totat Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capitai account reserve account holders’ interest {restated)
(restated) (restated) funds
(restated)
EQQQ E£060 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 E'Q00 £000
ff;fjfd“lf '“y 138435 - 1535589 163.337) 41185 1668982 9570 1678552
Prorperod - - - 3,875 13,823 17797 - 17703
agustmests incic 76
138435 - LE3Z5569 (59.962) 127,358 1685685 %570 1696.255
- - - - {27.00%9) (27,008 (4,007 (31012
- - - 44GR3 - 44 983 - 44 983
- - - - 333 (333) - (333}
Orther corrw;.crp};en;\';t: 7
neormel lexoernzel for - - - 44583 [3£%) 44 650 - 44 650
- - - 44,027 127,328 17645 (A.0C7) 13,628
- - - - 1,831 LE3: {1,842) 1)
bl o
wUan S rreger - - (195.312) - 195,312 - - -
recarye
& 11,685 173,118 - - - 164,803 - 182807
(444 - - - 2,359 1£,843] - (6,843)
Baarce as : i B N o e e . 2 =5 a4
202" frestated) 145676 173,118 1,440,257 114979 136,045 1,884,121 3o 1.887.842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 {restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979) 136,049 1884,121 3,721 1,887.842
Profit for the
financial year - - - - 37,932 37,932 (6,622) 33,310
Changes in market
value of cash flow - - - 77,985 - 77,985 — 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
ioss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds
£°000 £000 £000 £'000 E'000 £000 £000 £'000
Qther
comprehensive - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expensel for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense} for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 {6,622} 127,856
the yecar e
Utilisation of merger _
reserve 195,312 - (195,312} - -
Shares issued during 191,764 - - - 203,750 - 203,750
the year
Batance as at
30 June 2022 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 (2.770) 2,222,349 {2,901} 2,219,448
MNote 26 details the prior pefiod adjustments.
Company statement of changes in egquity Tor the year ended 3¢ June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and loss shareholders’
capitat account account funds
E'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
et S v B B SR R A
Balance at incorporation - _ _ — -
Loss for the financial year - - - (157,504} (157,504}
Utilisation of rmerger reserve - - 195,312
Total comprehensive income - - 1195,312) 37808 157,504
Shares issued during the year 150,120 173118 1986457 - 2,309,695
Shares cancelled during the year (444) - £,359) {5,843}
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409 2,145,348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312) -
Total comprehensive income — - 195,312 41,429 236,741
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750
Shares cancelled during the year - - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 2,585,839
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fatd

Groun statement of cash flows for the veay anded Z0 June 202

{restated)
Mote 2022 2021 :
£'000 E000

~~~~~~ B - Aiad B Ged A B RRROE AN RARRIAN VREESIR B0 W WANLGS & U s m L eas s Lom g vaaEem e ate CafBRIRY (Bew tT Beu duw t

Cash flows from operating activities

Proftiloss) “or tre fimancial year attributable 1 the owners of the parent 317,932 (27.005)
Adjustments for:
Tax or profit/iloss) 7 16,294 8349 i
INlerest recevable and sircilar income &) (120) (997]

Irterest

[l

33,554 36,068
posal of sutsidiar es and cint verure 5 (29,532) (28,568)

c and other sirmilar cnarges

Profiiona

Income from joint vernture - {1,755}

Ircomre frorn fixed asset nvestrents {5,249) {449)

Amarisation and -mpairren! of intaryg 7 45,762 37704
Deprociation of tang'oie fxod assers 3 101,802 81,697

3,040 8,875
Maovements or deqvatives and fore ga exchanges (18,044) (19.788)
Increase n stock {19,829) {5701
{Increasel/decreass In deblors 31,022 243,374
B8 1N Crecitons {173,956} 6871
MNor-controlling irterasts 19 (6,622) 14,007)
Tax recowed/ipad) 25,853 (1.751)

Mon-¢

Incroase/fdec

Cash flows from investing activities

Purcnase of subsidiary undertakings {net ¢ cash acquired; {52,377) 221,98/
Sale of sunsiciary Lnderaangs and jo nt vertare 101,778 34,503

Fure

of tangible assets (322,446) {113.457)
PLrenase of otangiole (7.222) {875
Furonase of unisted investments (124,203) (29.617)
of eI ants 10 105,000 20133
& 130 497

Ircome fror omns ventare - 1077

5

Sae of ur.s

Interast rele)ve

Net caéh u;éd in investing actiﬁities - (299,340) ‘ (306226;
Cash flows from financing activities S
Proceeds from firancing 201,719 -
(32,319) {35,552;
Repz/merts of Araraing (32,013) (212,676}
Procesds from share 1ssue 25 203,750 184,359
Care

irtar

Lation of srared '3 - 16,399}

Net cash generated frofﬁ lﬁnancing aétivitieé - 7 341,137 7 (70,268)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 83,694 (345771
Cash anc casn ecaivalents at the begnrag of tre year 0 172,478 206,688
i 283 387

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 7 il - 556W415 S 172478

E«cnarge gans on cash and o

Note 28 detals e prior per.od adustmerts,
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information

Fern Trading Lirrited (the Company'] is a private company limited by shares and incorporated on 14 May
2020 The company is domiciled in Ergland. the Urited Kingdorm and registered unger Company narmber
12601636 The address of the registered office is at 6th Floor, 35 Helcorn, Londan, England, FCIN 2HT

Statement of compliance

The Group arv ingividuas firancial statements of Fern Trading Limited nave been prepared in compuance
witn United Kingdorn Account ng Stardards, mciuding Finencial Reporting Standarc 102, "The Financ:at
Reporiing Standard appucahie inthe Hinited Kingaorn and the Repiibie of Ireland {RS 1027 and the
Cormpanies Act 2006,

Basis of preparation of Hnanclal statemeants

The financa. staternenis nave beer orepared on a going concern basis, under the hisiorical cost convertion,
as modided by the recogrition of certain financial assets ard lab lives mezsured at fair value. and in

accorzance with tne Compan es Act 2006 and applcable accourting stardarcs in the United {ingdom. The
principal account’ ng sol ces, which mave neen apolied conastenty throuahout the year, are set cut balow.

The corsolidated financial staternerts Include tre results of all subs diares ocwned by Fern Trading Lirmited
as listed in note 29 of the annual financial statements. Certain companies of these subsidiaries, which are
isted in note 29, have tzken tne exemptorn from an audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 perrmitted oy
section 4794 of Companies Act 2006 In order 1o allow these supsiciaries to tske the auit exempton, the
parent company has given a statuiory quarartes, ritre with section 479C of Companies Act 2006, of all
the outstanding net labilines as at 30 June 2022

{oing concern

The Group's and the Campary's business activities, together with tne factors likely to affect ds future
develepment, performance and postion are set odi tre Strategic Repori on pages 4 to 14, The francial
posttion of tre Group, ts cash flows, Lguidity postion ard borrowing facilities are described in the financia
review on pages 235 to 27 The principat risks of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 19

The Directors perform an annuat going concern review that considers the Group's ability to meet its
fnarncial obligations as they fail due, for a perod of at ieast twelve montns after tne date that the fimancial
staternents have been signed.,

Due to the challenging marke: corditions management have performed an assessmert (o determine
whether there are any materiat unceftaiﬂt:es arsing that coulg cast significant doutt on the abitty of the
Group to continue as g going concarmn, No significant issues have peen noted ard as a conseguence, e

directors beeve tnat the Grouo s wel placed to manage its business nisks successsfully despite the current

uncertzin economic outicok

> sBeg Eeme

M

H
3
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Statement of accounting policies

Im reaching this conclusion tha Drectors ~ave revigwed the “nancial Impacr o the uncertanily on the

Troup's balance srest profit ard (0s3 and cash fows witn specihic consideration given 1o the followirg

A reverse stress test was performed on tne base casc forecast 10 ascertar wrat scenancs would result n

0

ris<s 1o the Grouos hguidity postion The test showes evenan an snixe! J' scerana o grificant reduction

of revenue of 46%, the Group = abe to sastan its curent
due for a7 least a year from the date of sigrning nese firsnc.al sistements w'rtem Jelising the ava lable

facnities within the Croup

2z AT cortair Covenants red e Grouo to mainta n

~e Group has a numnter of inarcmg facilila:
o

rpy Witk certar otrer finarcial coverants. Trese Arancial covenants are

j'ﬁ

tesied at least quarteriy, and, at the date of this regort, the uro‘Jp < ir complarce withk gl its firancial
bly plausible scenario Dreducton i EBITOA of 84%

roJsed to aisess the covenant reguirements for the at least tre next twelve months ard
ail covemarts nave baen forecast to be mel even Jrder the stress test sceranio, 11 the gong cencern perncd
At 30 June 2022 the G

revoiyng crecit facity of £

and nesdroom avalab.e of £&41r ircludirg 2

¢ less than one yeer, with the remrainder

of £95%6m payabie inrore than ore yesr 1Tne Grouns “ac lives, repayment cates *.ﬂf* Lndrawn amounts are

\/1

set out i Naote 16 Loans and Borrowings

Key croounting judgement ard estirates have bees rmade witn considerat'or given to the carrert

onomic ouiook Koy estmates nciude loar recoverabuty, valLat on

decomimission ng orovisiors, mpairment of gocdwill and rvestrnents, busimess comoinanons ard hec

accodnting. uPTaHS are set out on pages 50 o 5L

Based on the above gssessme f curent eceromic corditons and the mpact on tre Group's iinancial
postion, dguidity and Gnancial © : nave conciuded that the Groue and Company nas
adequate resources (o Conbnue ir operal snal exisience or tne next 12 mont=z Thus, they contirug 1o
adootth accosnlng in prepar ng the arnual Ainarcal statemerts

‘o certan condilions, whicr rave

fexemplicns oy the Comrpary's

“re Comoany hias taken savantage of the “ollowing exermplicns
frem prepar rg a statemert of cash ﬂcws or the bass thatits a quallying ertily and tre corsolidaten

staterent of ca A these finarc al staterrents, imciucad the Como

i fromr tre finacc res. rec.ared Lader PRI ZGZ ca“ﬁfar% 1135 tc1i48A ad
caraqrants (2.7 onrat or s orpvided - ThE Con nc al staterrent

ri from ciscosrg the Corrpany ksy Tanagement pertorael compersation, 35 “egured oy FRE 102
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caragrach 33
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of Fern Trading Lirmned ard all its subsidary
urdertakings made up to the same accounting date, Al intra-group balances, trarsactions, income and
expenses are alimmalaed in ful o consolidation. The results of subsidiary Lndertakings acquired or disposed
of dunng the per od are included or exuded from the ircome statemens from the effeciive date of
acguisition or disposat

Al undertakings over which the Group exercises coritrol, be ng the power 1o govern tne inanoa. and
operatirg polcies so as to obtar oenedts from ther acuvities, are conselidated as subsidiary undertakings

Where a subsidizry has different accounting polic es o the C;roup, adjustrments are made 1o those
subuidiary financial statements to apply the Group's accounting policies when oregaring the corsolidated
finarcal statements

Ary subsid.ary undertakings or assocates sold or acaurred dur.ng tre year are included up to, or from, the

j
dates of crnango of control or change of signifcant influence respect;’veiy
Where the Grouo has writter a put coton over shares held by @ nor-controiing interest, the Grou

derecogrises the non-coniraling interest ang instead recognised conungent defered consideration Habr[:ty
witriin other payables for the estmated amount li<ely o be pa'd 1o the nor-contraling interest on exerc s«
of thiose oplions, Thne residua: amount, representing the difference between af-y consideration pa f’payabte
and the non-controling interest's srare of net assets, 15 recogrised as goodwill. Movements in the

estuimated laoiity after initial recogrition are recocrised az goodwili

Foreign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group financial statements are presented in cound sterong and rounded (o thousands.

The Company's functional and presentation currency is poung sterling and rounded £ thoutands

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functioral currency usng the spot exchange rates ai
the dates of the transactions. AL each period end foreign currency monetary tems are translated using the
clesing rate. Non-rmonretary iterms measured at historical cost are translated wsing the excharge rate at the
date of the transacton and non-monetary iterms measdred at fa.r vaue are measured using the exchange
rate when fair value was determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
trarsactions and from the translat an at percd-end exchange rates of moneatary assets ard labilities
denomnated in foreign currencies are recogrised in the profit and 10ss account

Al foreign exchange gans and loszes are presented in the profit and loss account within agroinistrative
axpenses.

ili. Translation

The trading results of Groug undertekings are translated o pounds sterling at the average exchange rates
for the year. The assets and liabilities of overseas uncertakings, including gocawiil and fair value adiustments
ar.sing on acqguisition, are translated at the exchange rates ruling at the year-end. Excnange adjustments
arising from the retranslation of open.ng ret investments and from the translation of the prohts or losses
at average rates are recognised in ‘Cther compranensive incorme’ anc allocated to non-controling inerest
as aprcropriate
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnower

f=

The Group operates 3 nurmber of classes of business Revenue is gernved by the following.

* Energy
Turncver from the saie of electricity generated by solar farms, wird generalirg assers, reserve power
.31 and niomass and landfil sites is recognised or ar accruals bass in the penod in which itis

generasted, Rey

enug from lorg-term government backed offtaxe agreements, such as the Renewan.e

Obligato- Cerufication (ROCT schere are accrued in the period nwnich o relates to. Turmover from the

b}

za.e of fertivser by biormass and wandfill pusiresses is recagrised on physical dispatch

sociated with the fransaction wil flow 1o the entity Tarmover
ideration receives for nenthoare services provided 0 the normal

T Tureover s recognised tasec on the date the service s

» Le~ding
Turaover recr

ard merest on loars crovided © customers, net of ary value
added tax. _can interest s recogrised on an accrual bass 0 line with contraciual terms of the car

agreament Arrangement ‘ees ae soread aver the ufe of the oan to which trey reate.

« Fiore

Turnover s recogrisec at the ‘ar vaiue of the constderabon rece ved for internet connecuvty and related

T serv'ces provided r tne normal course of busingss, ard is snown ~et of VAT Tormover 1§ recognises
pased o the date the service s provided,

+ House buiaing
Turnover is recognised on 'ega. completor of the sale of property, land and cornrercia, spaces Tunover
from housing asseciation cont s iz recogrized by reference o the vaie o work corrp.eted as a

proocrtiion of the total contract value

Emploves benefiis

Tre Group provides a range of berefits to empioyees, roucing arrua. borus arrangemants, paa Foliday

arrangerients and
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i. Short-term benefits

Short- terrr benefits includ ng holiaay nay and otrer sirlar rer-ronetary tereits, are recozn sed as ar

exoense rine perodinwh or tre serv Ce s rece ven.

ii. Defined contribution pension plan
A defned cornbut o7 plar s & pensior pian u-der wh'on the Group pays fixed cortnbuzons nic a
separate ertty. Cnce the cortrouhons ~ave been paid tne Group has nc furiher payment abligatsrs

he contrigulions are recogrised as o expense wher they are dus. Armoants not oa d are showr n

zcoruals it the balance sheet ts of re gac are held secaately from toe Crous 1n mdepsdantly

adririsees funas




Statement of accounting policies

iii. Share-based payments
Casr-settled share-based paynents are measured at farr value at the balarce sheet date. The Group
recognises adability 8t the balance sheet date based on these fair values, taking into account the estumated

rumber of units that wll actually vest and the current proportion of the vesting pencd
Cnarges in tne value of this labiily are recognised in the ncome statement,

The {

L_,\J

rouc has no eguty-setiled arrangemenrts,

Finance cosis
Finance costs are cnarged to the profit and loss account over the terr of tne debt using the effective
Interest method so that the armount charged

by recognesed as a reauchon in the proceeds of the associated capial instrument ard reeased to the

is at a consrant rate on the Carrying amourt {siue cosis are

proft and loss account over the term of the debt,

Current and deferred tax

)
s

s recognsed n the statement 0F ncome and retained earmings, except that a change attr butaole © an
itern of Incor-e and expensa recognized as otner comprehenive INncorme or 1o an e recognised arrectly
I equity 15 3.5¢ recognized ir other comprehens ve incorme or directly in equ ty resgectively

The current income tax charge 15 caiculated on the bass of tax rates ard laws that hiave Deer enacted of
substantively enacted by the balance theet date 1 the counines where the Comparr- operates and

generaes ncome

are reco gmseH norespect of all trming differences that have crgiratec but not reversed

« The recogrition of deferred tax assets 1s imited to the extent that it is probable that they wilt be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax labilities or other future taxakle proits, and

« Any deferred tax balances are reversed 1f and when ail conditions for retaining ascociated tax allowanceasz
nave been met.

Deferred tax balances are rot recogrised in respect of perrnanent differences except in respect of ousiness
combinazions, when deferred tax s recognised on the differences between the fair values of assets acquired
and the future tax deductions avaltable for them and tne differences between the fair values of labilities
acqured and the amount that will be aszessed for tax, Deferred tax s deterrmined using tax rates and laws
that have been eracied or substantwvely enacted by the balance sheet date

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accountad for by applying the purchase method

The cost of a business comimation is the far value of the consideration given, Laniuties incurred or
assumed and tre equity Instrumants issued plus the casts directly attributaile to the business combination,
Where control is achieved in stages the cost s the corsideration at the date of each transacion

On acquisition of a business, fair values are attricited to the icentifiable assets, kabiities ard cont ngent
labilines unless the fair value cannot be measured retably, in which case the value is incorporsied a3

goodwil. Where the fair va.ue of contingent uabilities canrot be reliably measured they are disclosed

on the same tasis as other contingent liabilities.

prel
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Statement of accounting policies

Goodwill recognized regresents the excess of tre far vawe and directly einputab.e costs ©
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cansideration cver the fair vaiues to the Groug's interest in the dentfia,

iabities acquirad,

n
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e
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O acauister. goodwilis allocated to cash-genearat ng units (CGU'sT that are exoected 1o beneit from

the cormbimation

Goodw i amortised aver its expacted usaful e which s determned bases on the estimated lifespan of
tne assels acguired. Where tre Group is unatle to make a reuabe estimate of useful We, goadwill is

amorused over a pencd not excesding ten yaars Gooawill s rev ewes and for 'mparment

irdicators on an anrwal bacis and any impairment is charged 1o the proft and

Tangible fxad assets

Tarcibie “xed asset a

off the cost of Nxad assels, (st trar estimeates residual value, ovar ther ax !

comrmences from the oate an assat 5 brought intg service Land anac aisels in the course of consiruchon
re not depre g Thee 25 are as ‘oliows.
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truction are stated a7 cost  hese assets are ~Cr cepreciated antil they ars

as techroiogical sdvancerrent or changes in market proe, Maicate that residual value
or useful v'e have changed, the resicua value, useflt life or depreciation rate are amended prospectively to
reflect the new circurnstances. The assefs are reviewed for imparment if the atove factors naicate that the
carrying amaourt may be impaied

Gaing and lgsses or disposals are determinea by CoTpanirs the oroceads wilr 118 Carrying amoun: ang ars
recogrisaes withye profit or loss

intangible assels
irtangible as oriizaron and accumuates imoarrmeant (Gsses

Arnortisaticr 18 calos a, using th g ht-t t

zllzeate the deprecable samourt cf tne assets
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Statement of accounting policies

Where ‘actors, such as changes in market price, indicate that residuzl vaiue or useful life have changed the
residual vatie, useful life or arrortisation rate ere amended prospectively to reflect the new circumstance

The assets are reviewed for imgarment of the above factors indicate that the carrying amourt may

Leases

At mception the Group assesses agreements that transfer the right 1o use ss5¢ets a
whethar the arrangement i, or contans, a lease based on the subsiance ¢f the arrangement and whether
the lease should be classified az either 2 finance lease or ar. operating lease.

Leases of assets that trarsfer substantally all the nsks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as
finance leases Firance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value o tre

asset a~d cepreciated over the shorter of tne lease term and the estimated useful ife of the asset
Assels are assessed for impairment at each reporting date

Leases that do not transfer al the risks and rewards of ownership ere classified as cperating £as2s.
Payrnents under operating leaszs are crarged o the profit 2and (Gss account on a siraight-ine nasis over the
period of the iezse.

Imvastiments

The Compary Rolds mvestrrents in a subsidiary at 2ost iess accumulated impairment losses. If an
rnpairment oS 1s subsequently raversed, the carrying amount of the investment s increased ¢ the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only @ the exient that the revised carryirg amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have peen delermined had no imparrment (0ss been recognsed in prior
pereds. A reversatl of an impairment loss is recagnised in the profit and 'oss account,

Cash

Cash includes cash in nand and depasits repayabie on derrana Restricted cash represents cash for which
the Grouo does not have immaeadiate and direct access or for which regulatory or legal requirements restrict
the use of the cash.

Stocks

Raw materials. spare parts and consumatles are vawued at the lower of cost and net realisable vaiue Where
necessary, a provision 1§ made for obsolete, slow-maving and defecive stock. Costis determined on the
first=in, frrst-out {FiFO] method,

Fuel stocks (MBM and litter] are valued or an average cost basis over one to two months and grovision for
unusabie litter 1s reviewed moninly and applied to off-site stock

Fuel stock of straw nas been valued at the historical cost per tonne of straw. A provision for unusatle straw
1s identfied on an individual stack basis and 1s reviewead maonthly, Stocks are usea o a firstin, first cut
("FI-GT basis by age of straw.

Stocks of ash at Fiorophos are valued at the lower of cost and net reauszbie value (o the Group

Stocks of property deve.cpment work in pragress "WI2') are stated at the lower of cost ang net realisanle
lue Cost comprises direct matenials and, where appafab , direct labour costs and those overheads tnat
Fave been incurred in brirging the stocks to their pretent locations and condition.
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At each reporting date, an aisessmentis mades for -mparment. Any excess of the ¢

SIOCKE Gver ifs estimaied se.%:ng price lese codte to complete and sell s -ecognisec
through the proft and (oss account Reversals of imparmenrt osses are also recog

Aoorued ingome
corued ncame on wans s caloulated at the rate of interest set ot 17 the ioan co

accrued over the pericd nwnich 1t ras beer generaed.

Deferad income is recognised i accordarce with the terms
ol a

cocount in the pencd 1o wnicn it relaies

Financial instrumenty

Tne Group has chosen o adopt Seciors 11 ard |

SoF

Financial assets

Besic financial ag incl.d rg rrade and otrer recevabies and cash

recogrised al ransac e3s tre arrangement const tutes
fransact:on s measured 2t the present vaiue of the future receiots disc

Such asse's are ubsequennty carred at armartised cost s2ing tre effectve nrerest

At the end of each reporting pencd finarcial assels measurad at arrorusen cost ar

evidence of impa *ment If an azset s impairec th impairmert lo:s s tre d:ﬁ‘ererﬂ
armount ard tre present vaiue of the estimated cash flows ciscourted at the asset

rate. Tre imzarment (035 15 recogrised in profit or loss

Other financia.

jortventures, are nitizily measured at farr value. which is normally the tarsacton
subsequenty carr.ed at far vaue and tre 2hanges n far vaue are recogn sed ir pro
Irvesirnients in eguily Instrurments that are not publicly raced ang wnose far val:
reliaty are measured at cost less mpairmen,

Ctual nghts to the cash flows

RS 122 in resoect of Airandi

arrying amouwnt of

asan im roent loss

rised in the proft and

Mrgcis. =nergy INCome 3

t. Deferred income is

a
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cluding irvestrnens In equity instruments which are not subsiciaries, 35300 ates or
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ofit or loss, except that

25 cannct oe measured

from the assel expire or

5 ar'd rewards of the owrershug of *he ascet
ree trarsferred to anctner garty who has ine gract.cal aniity

ird party without imocsng adaitona.
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Statement of accounting policies

Debt nstraments are subseguently carried at amrartised cost, using the effective interest rate metnod. Fees
pa.d or tne estagiishmert of \oan facilities are recognised as transact on cosis of the locan to the extent thal
it Is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn dowr. In ths case, the fee s deferred until (re
draw-down occurs, To the extent there is no ovidercea that 4 is probable that some or ali of the facility wil
te drawn down, the fee 15 capitalized as a pre-payrment for lguidity services and amortised over the perica
of the fatiity to wh chif relates.

Trade payables are obugahons 1o pay ‘or goods or services tnal have been acquired in the ordinary course

=

cf busiress from supphers Accounts nayable are classified as 1 uabilities of payment is due within one
vear or less. if not, they are preserted as non-current Latibues. Tfa / ables are recognised intiaily at
transaction price and subs2quently measured at arrortsed cost usmg he effective interest metnad.

Financial labilinies are derecognized when thie liability 15 extinguisned, that 15 when the contractuzl otlgation
15 discharged, cancelled or expires

Provisions

Provisions ar

rl)

maae where an even: has taker place that gives the Group a legal or construcove obligation
that procaby reguires settiement by a transfer of ecorcomic beneft, and a redab.e estimate can be made of
the armount of the abligation

Provisiors are charged as an expense to the proft and loss accourt in the year that the Greug becomes
aware o° the cbligation, and are measured al the best estimate at the palance sheet date of the expenditure
required to settle the ob. gation, ta<ing Nto account relevant nsks and uncerainties,

Hedging

The Grouo applies nedge accounting for tranzactions entered into 1o Manage the cash flow exposures of
borrowings. Interest rale swaps are held 1o manage the inlerest rate exposures and are designated as cath
fiow hedges of floatng rate borrowings. Charges ‘n the fair values of dervatives designated as cash flow
kedges. a~d which are effective, are recognised directly in eguity. Any ineffectiveress in the hedging
relattonship (baing the excess of the cumusative cnange in farr value of the hedging instrument since
incepton of the hedge over the cumulative cniange in the farr value of the hedged ‘temn since inception of
the nedge) 13 recogrized in the profit and loss,

The gain or loss recogrised in other comprenensive income is reclassified to t~e proft and loss in

accordance with the cash flows of (ne heoged iterm Hedge accounting is d'scontinued when the hedging
instrument expires, 1c wonger meets the hedg ng criteria, the forecsst transacton is no longer nighiy
procable, the hedged debt instrumert s derecognised or tne hedging instrument is terminaiec.

Share capital

Crd niary shares issued by trie Groug are reccgnised in equity at the value of the proceeds receved, witn the
excess over nominal value being credited to snare premium
Non-contrelling interests

Non-controling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquree’'s identifiable net aszets
at the date of acouisit-on.
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Statement of accounting policies

Key accounting judgemants and estimates

The preparatior of finarcal staterents in cermpliance witn RS 202 requres the use of certain Crivcat

FCIoUrting estmates [t also requires mangagement o exercize uOQ&I’T’]c‘ﬂ M 3[\) VNG the C moah;s

accourtng policies Estimaies and jud.ﬂemems are continualy evaluatea and are based on hisioricat

experience and other facters, ncluding excectaticns of future evenis that ae believed o be reascnable

ac
under the circumistances Tne key estimates and JLdgements in orecanng these furancia. siatements are.

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)
Locans and advances to customers, including associaied 20Crues INCome balances, are reviewead for

impairmeant on a guarterly basis, In cons.denrg the nesd for a provis-cn
estmate of the expeced f dture cash flows on a case by case Dasis. As thig
numeer of assomotions about future everts wihich may aiffer from aciua: outcomes, ImCiu
baorrovver's ability 1€ regay interest and capral due i fuiure penods, this gives rice to judgement 28 1o

te ceriam

I
&
ud

hgie} Thge

whether trere is a sho-tfall between tne carrying vaiue and the fair vaue of the debtor balance

Maragement note that prov sions agamst wans and advences is a crit'cal estmate and ~ave therefore

performed sensitiv.ty analysis on the provision. Tre results of the sensitvity a~alysis conclude that a crange

of +/- one per centir the amourt proviced agains: the ecsumated alarce af risk woudd have resuited In
£36m lezs/more expendiure being charged 10 the incorme statement curing the cenod. Ses note 13 for the
carrying amaolirt of the debitors and provisicrs at 30 June 2022

ii. Value of property development work in progress {'WIP') {estimate)

Property development WiF 15 revewed for ;mpairmemt or a percdic basis o considéring the need for a
provisicn, Mmanagernent deterrrine therr best esumate of the recoverable value Managerrent Cﬂgom ar
expert externa: valuer to orovics key azsu ptlomc bv 5 future ever-ts which rmay differ from aciual

i 5F samee ard deve .opment K«

outcormes, inciudimg pr

Tresa estimates give rise 0 judgement as to wnetrier there 15 & srortiali between e carrying value and the

m
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ce as al the 30 Ju~e 2022 Post year end, maragement have reviewed the
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a the vaiue of property daveloprrent WiP and have obse vad nc changes in
-

a —
performance that wous impact the valuat-or as gt tre 30 June 2022 See note 12 for the carrying armount

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)

Tre Group owns two energy generat'rg subsidiaries in Australia which have entered rito purchase prce
agreements [PEA's) in 2019 and 2021 The FPAs 1ncwde a contracs for ¢ flerences 'CfFD " whereby the

outs.de tre scope of FRS 202 section 22 as it is for

such arrargermssts, Therefore ts neng accourtes o un CTw I

varao.e corsgarancr, rather nan revad ~g the ertire Corractl 1o "a r va.ue,

incurred clus the

5 a key estimate
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)
The provision for decomirm ss oning costs s measured atl maragemrent's best estimate of the present value
of the expend.ture recuired to settle the future cb\\gatlora to return land on whicn there are operaticnal wind

and solar farms, © s original condiner. The level of the provisions is determined to a significant degres by
the estmation o° future dismantlicrg and resicration costs, as well a5 the tring of disrantlement

Wind Farms (estimate):

Maragement note tat decomirnissioning provis ans 13 a antical estimare and have therefore performed
sencitivity analysis Tne results of the sensitivity anaiysis conclude trat a change of +/- one per cent In thie
orn See nowe 17 for the prowvisior

discourt rate would have resyited :n £2.1n increase/decrease in the prov
recagnised at 30 June 2022, Maragement utilise exiernal expertlise 1o provide an estimated cost t©
dismanie and have usen a discount rate of 2% (o reflect the tUrne in value of money and © specific

T
Q
=
]
=
Efi_

to the cohgaton.

Australian solar farms {judgement):

The Group s reauired (o resiore the eased prerises of the solar farn o their ongina: condition at the eng
of thie leaze term A grovision was previcusly recognised, however in the currert year this judgerment ras
been reassessed ard maragement believe the lessor may wish to either take title of the assets for either
contnued use or to realse value through sellirg the assets and as such 2o not believe that ar cutflow is

probable to settde this restorauon oougation

UK Sclar (estimate}):

During the year, a third party performed an assessment of the base cost of the decommissiering of the
Groups UK solar “arrns. The findings nave resuited in material change in the cost estimate and therefore a
provisior has been recognised for the first time on some sites, The impact has rasuited in a provision beng
ra <ed for £158m 0 the balance sheet decernmissioning liability and fixed assets. As at 30 June 2022 there is
ro impact on the proit and loss. Sites not affected are acdrested bewow,

UK and French Solar (judgment}):

Managerrent believe that given the nature of these partcular assets, the lessor rmay wish o aither take title
of the assets for either continued use or 1o realise value through selling the assets and as such do not
believe that an outflow 15 probabie (0 settie this restoral’ or chlgation Management will continue 1o momnits
the siuation at each balance <neet date,

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
The value of goocwill Neld oy the Group end investmerts in subsidiary undertakings held by the Company
s reviewed annually for impairment. ~he recoverablity of these balances is corsidared with reference o the
present value of the estimated future cash flows, These calculations use cash flow proectons which extend
forward forecast business parformance ogethor with assumptions surrcunding tre expecied iife of the
asset, externally prepared forecasts and vauations, ard any adiustiments required to the discount rate to take
account of busiress risk The estimated present value of these future cash flows 15 sensitive 1o the discount
rate a "d yrowth rate used in the calculation, all of which require management's judgement Testing of the
carrying vaiue has been parformed dunng the year, whicr has involved several scenarios being medelled.
Basec on tnis weung and the resulbing impairment recagnised on investments, management bekeves there
sdfficient headroom (© support the value of goodwill and investrments in subsidiary entities

Management note that imparment of goodwill and investments s a critical est mate and have therefore
performen sersitivity analysic o the provision. The results oF the senstvty analysis conclude that & change
of +/- ore per cent in the amount provided agamst the estimated balarce at nsk would nave resuled in
£5.49m iess/more expenditure being charged to the ircome staterment during the penod. See note & for
the carrying amount of the gocdwitt and nvestments at 30 June 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
R

Analysis of turnover by category
2022

lemding actvities
Eriergy operzuons  solar, resarve power and wind 365,958
s — Giomass ana landhll 223,526
45,978
25,034
8,930

711,830

Enorgy ope

Heancare o

e R A e s G v HTETANEE BESRREA N OH B Gaanes wxe bhn n w v o e TTTT YO KT OGP RGP O R s e e

2021
£'000

56,550
179,820
141,826
42,256
4838
425,302

Ineudes i ncorra from Hesltncare ogperatoes s L7 4m 2021 211 Zrnd resating o e sale of retremert village ures,

and £25 G {2021 L2 Tregan relat.on 1o sarvicas randorcs

Analysis of turnover by geography

2022

lmieod Kingoors

603,911
Europe 84,433

Rest of wo

711,830

£000

23,486

2021
£000

384799
51,803
8610

425302

Other income

2022
£000

Seree ettty +

£'0C0

nsurance orocesds

3,550

G454
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This s statwed after charging/lcrediting!

{restated)
2022 2021

E'000 £000

L TR R B R e R bR F R S e S | pRERE X e GRR SIS ¥ RGN RE R £ HA0T BRRA AR Bt 10 n it $4 7T UE T RO L

Armortisation of Intangible assets inote §) 37.849 37,704
Impairment of Intangible assets (note 81 7,913 -
Lepreciation of targibie assets inote 9} 101,802 84,697

Auditors’ remuneration — Company and the Group's corsclidatea
financial staterments

45 146

Auditors rermuneration - audit of Comdarny's sabsidianes 819 1.134
Audiiors remureration — non-audit services 246 513
Audricrs rermureration — @x compliance services 482 672
Difference on foreign exchange 7,772 4402

Operatrg leate rena s 13,783 7502

Note 26 details the prior pericd adjustmeants

2022 2021

S ) ~E'000 £'000

Wages ang salaries 85,432 41 383
rity COsts 7,041 3.809
3,233 1,676

95,706 | 46868

The Group provides @ defined contribution schemes for its employees in the UK. The amount recognised as
an experss for the defined contributior scheme is snown In the table above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022 2021
_— o o Number Nurnber
Frodactio R T e 599
Adrrsristeaiion 631 348
3 3

The Company had one employee other than Directors duning the pericd ended 30 June 2022 2021 neone)




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
g% .‘ L et

2022 2021
£000 £000

OB AR g ane s 0 VRS TR RA R e

176 163

e

E-nolu

L L ST e

Curng the year No pension contrindtions wore made 1 respect of tre drectors (2021 nane)

The Group nas no other key management (2021 none:

Bl o I

A number of sucsidiarios of tre Group cperate a cash-zetred LTIP o gualfy:ng empioyaes, whereby
ernployees renger servicas in excharge for cash, tre arnount of wrich s determined oy raforence 10 the

valualon of the under ying subediary. The fair value of tre vai lity for the awards made s measdras at eacr
recorirg date and gt the settlement gate. Te farr vawe s recegised cver the vesting perica The arrount
e recognised fakes irto ancoun: e best avalaoe estmate of the nurmber o7 Lnits expected

g
vest under the service and performance conditions underiying eacn award grane

2022 2021

Number of Nurmber of
awards awardc

’)r@mr.g cutstand 0o nais 1,914 751 1640 OOO
Cranted ul.rfqrv_ per 1763 553 2/4/51

Closing outstandmg halance - 3 678 314 1 914 751

The total charge for the year was £2.132,00C 12021 £1.332000; and at the 30 June 2022 there was a

labdity of £2.407.000 ircluded with n creditors greater t-an one year (2021 £1,324.000)

a - - -

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
£000 £:000

130 997

2022 2021
EOOD £000
NIHGS 2,597 1103
tReofitt/loss on aervatve Frantia Instrurrerts (1,235) 587

33,554 36,068

irteres

tan ce,rwk bc

j
i
i
|
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Folo o e e

a) Analysis of charge in year

{restated)
2022 2021
e e goo00 . E009
c“,-.-em ;ax R R S AR £ RS £ A 8 R AR AR 18 RS 08B A e o7 7 3 T et gt
UK corporation tax charge on profit/iicss! for the year (297) 1648
AQusiments in 1espent of pnos periods 3,196 (2.866)
Forf—-;n tax ;uffrrfr‘ 5 641 -
Deferred tax:
Orngirstior and reversal of tming differences 6,227 2,074
Adjustments in respect of pniar per ods (3.741) 3.998)
Effect of change m Lax 1 5,268 11.491
Total dtf&f:&;g::xm o 7758 957
Tax charge on profrirtrltlésrs) onordlnary actrivitiesrl o “ R o 16,294 ~ 8,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for tne year is righer (2021 nigher) than the standard rate of corporaton axin the UK of

19% 12021 19%) The differences are explained bewow.

(restated)
2022 2021
St oE s NEEApET RRA N, S e " E’DOD —_ E OOO
I;;oﬂtl(;;;s)beforetax Sttt teen m ST B 47&9‘4 § VW - h “(21 170‘ “
SEH/E 055 o ta itirs i dsra rate o
e e S
Effects of
Expenses not 2eductibie for tax purpose 11,723 16,074
Oftrer effects {868) 1,022
Incoroo not taxable for tax purposes {8,102) (2.351)
Adjusiments in respect of pnor perods {545} (6,865)
E"*ec*s o h;.me ir tax rates 5041 11,485
Totaltax charge forthe year S . 16,294 ‘ 8,349

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finarce Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the main -ate of UK corgoration tas from 19% o
25%, effective 1 April 2022, Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% (2021 25%;

wrich represents the future carparation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

MNota 26 detais the prior penoc adjustments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
@

Software Goodwill Development
{restated} rights

Gmup L £000 £'000 EOOO

Total

£000

TR 5 G st smbeseuune ARRAEERAL TR g ey e R A e B s o Y TOE SRR S e G 7T TEREI RER Y L T T SRR ERE R b amud £

Cost
Ab L Juyy 2021 restate) 964 726,602 10,215
Acuired through business - 30,042 4,058

combinalions (o 27)

Adcitons 2,125 - 1,040
Dizpcsals - (21118}

(;r roen rar.f‘d' ien - /930 -

At30 June zozz " 3089 743 456 ‘15314

Accumulated amortlsatlon

AL Juty 202 restaicd, 107 159,802 1034
Cisnosals - (2.482) -
OSSO0 ranslat on - {192)

lenparrent - 7913 -

O‘nr ge ‘orthe year 12 37314 523

At 30 June 2022 119 202,475 = 1557
Netbook value ' T
At30 June 2022 . 2,970 540,981 13,757

737,782

761 859 V

1

557,708

34,100

3165
(21,118}
7930

61,043
(2462)
(192}
7913

204 151m

At 40 June 2027 i rrnﬂed' 857 566,700 9,182 576,739
Tre gan on trarsiatcn of foreign curency demominaled 3ooowiil s reccgnised in ciher comorehensive

ncome Amrortisatior of goodw:l is charged © adm \ﬂlSiratO‘ COS3
Detalds of the subsidiaries acqu red auring the year erded 30 cune 2027 can te ‘ound in rawe 27

Sur ng the year the groun disposed of 2 wad “armis in1 Finland, as a resut £2 5m of g
armortisateon was recogr sed in the current year ard £19 3 of gocowt was reassed on the szle.

sale recognised in tre preht and o8 inrelaion o thes Tranzachiar was £28m

Impairmast of £79 has bear recognised on goodwil (2021 ronel.

'r-\ﬂ"\A,

Ny a55e7s Nave oeen pledged as secunty for sl tes at year enc (25

T et Pkt

zesats at 30 Jure 2022 (2021 nons;

(I‘;

e Cormnary had ro intangiil

e oror porod adjusiments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
S e

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total

buitdings stations machinery assets construction {restated)

(restated}

Group E'000 E'00D £'00C £000 E'000 )
Cﬁ;st“ﬁm‘ AR £ R e s e A e i s 2 e - st et
AL July 2Lz restatea) 8,531 217467 1695437 27288 43,277 2092000
ACGINGrs 829 1536 73.647 60462 238,008 374480
Acgured throug1 bus ress 1308 - 51,344 - 57663 110,315
combinatans (note 27)
FXffar value moverren: - - 368 - 2,294 3662
Transfers - 68 1,066 30,936 132.070) - :
Ci E {155} - 175,951) - - {76, 080) 4
At30June2022 10533 319071 1745911 118,686 310170 2,504,371
Accumulated deprecmtlon o S S " T
Al July 2022 4410 80059 414589 1290 - 510.318 %
Crarge for the year 183 17,130 81,141 3,248 - 101.862
Disposals - - (1€2) 221 - (403)
FX movenzat - - (7761 - - {776}
At 30 June 2022 " 4,593 493,742 4417 - §10941
o : LT . e e v A
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
A 30 ”L o 2021 fre SatFG - - 4121 227408 1,2‘80,878‘ V 25998 43‘.277 " wl‘,581,68u2

Included within tangible assets are capital sed finance costs directly atributaiie to bringing the asset into
use. The net carrying amount of assets neld dm finance leazes included in plant, machinery, Axtures and
fittings 15 £51,785,000 {2021 £51 534,600 ). | ded in network assets 1s a provsion of £1,023.500 for
opsclete eguipment and dewel pmcnt

The Compary had no tangible assets at 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel

Note 26 detais the prior penod ad;Lstments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
ig

Unlisted
investments Total

Group £000 e F'ODO
Cost an& :!et book value e S e e a T
ALty 2027 1L.060 11000
Adotons 129452 129452
(105,060) 1105,000)
35452 35452
1000 11000

Subsidiary
undertakings Totat

Company - R £000 £000

A o T S AL L LA bl s

A5 20 June 2021 2310678 2,311678
228,300 228,300

2,539,978 2,539,978

AccumuEated lmpairments
AL B0 Joree 20020 195,312 195,312
Reversal Of rmpairmerits {195,312) {195,312}

A3 aunezozz e [ e e - -
Net book value
At 30 June 2022 2 539 978 2, 539 978 &
A 30

June 2022 2116366 2116.366

Detalz of related undertakings are shown i note 24

Uniistes invesimeants comonse fre Group's nodrg of tne maembers’ cagital of Tendo LLE & lendin

Loaa £

o
=
business, ana its srarerc.dirgin Brackes Trading L rited. Fer co-founded serido tLP o Ocicber 2012 with
imertion of corductng a proportior of ks fuiare trage rrough the partnersa p Addinons ara d

D lire w

g lo mvesTments ard divestreoats i Ter do

Trme G ime FRrms onv [

o
5]
3
ol
;
.
in
ja)
w
S
5
-
5
D
N
<3
9]
P
<«
“
o
A
.
o
=

rackern -
T P

Trne drecior: 4o mot cors aer T

=3

et

o
enac

Trad g imites.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
B A
Cash includes cash in nand ard deposits repayab.e on dernand

Restricred cask represents casn for which the Group does not nave immed'ate and direct access of for
which regulatory or legal requirements restrict the use ¢ the cash.

Group
2022 2021
£000 o £ ODO‘
Cash at Bani an in nand e 195,823 17141
Resincted cash 60,592 ‘3_> 337
Cashatbankandinhand S »256;41.5»w BT 478&‘

Restricted casn s comprsed of £726.000 held i Escrow end £5% 826 0C0 of cazh held r subsidharies with
cl-arndal distrbution windows.

The Company 1ad a cash batance of £5,422 G000 as at 30 June 2022, raore of whicn was restr cled (2021
riel.

Group
2022
£'000
1,538
Fuel spare parts and consurtames 26,023

Property developrment Wik 156,918

Asr s

184,479

The armount of stocks recognisad az an expense during the year was £120,413,000 (2021: £41,212,C00)

Included in the fusl spare parts and consumables stock value is a provision of £320,000 for unusable fuel
stock (2021 £459 000} Including n oroperty development WiF is a provisior of £528 0C0 for warranty and
ste spec o provisions

Tnere has been no imoarment recognised dunng the year on stock (2021 nonel No inventory has oeen
neyj,

-
cledged as secunty for uabilities ’021

ne Comgpany nad no stocks at 30 June 2022 (2021 none)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
BE O oo

Group Company

{restated)
2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 E OOO £000 2000

S - wremanr a5 A o w BTETIY XY TIET NN g SRR RERTITURRER Y B 033 TR ek 4B ES s

Amounts falling due after one year

Leans ard ardvances 10 cusiones 137,662 16,128 - -

Amounts falling due within one year

l.oans and advances fo customaers 223,239 369,384 - -

rade debtors 42,050 16121 192 8
Armncurts owed by related part es indte 24 - 2550 32,950 12,751
Other detors 20,199 24,972 3,843 5008
COrporauon tax - £,603 2,527 z
Dervatve firancial nstro 54,409 64649 - - :
Prepayrments and aconiea ncomes 145 502 ib4, 37': 176 32,616
. S 623 161 - MJBP OO.{ R .;59,7888” 7 7 50.383 l

cans and advarces to castom

ers are stated nat of provisions of £13 874000 (2021 £15,189 0001
repayments anid accrued neorne are statec ret of pravicions of 77392000 (2021 £13741.000)

No nierestis charged o armourts owed Sy growp wnderta<ings, as the cutstandirg balarces are umsecured
and repayab.e cn demard (2021 nonej

Note 20 details the pricr perod adjustments

%
|
]
|
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

L4 ooy UL et D L e D

Group Company

frestated)
2022 2021 2022

£'000 £:000 E 000

2021

EOOO

Bark loans and cverdrafts roe 16 82,782 ases T
Trada creditors 58,004 23,390 76 16
Otrer wexatnn and socat secunity 8,161 - - -
Othar crodiors 24,362 55906 - -
Amonnts due o related parties (ncte 24} - - - 20,203
Finance teases (note 15) 2,428 3147 - -
Deorvatve fnancal instruments (ncle 21 - 143 - -
Accrua s ana deferred ircome 75, 465 72 087 2 7&;

256,152 202 058

Group
2022

2021

Amounts fallmg due betweenone and fiveyears £'000 - £:000
Bark loans snd overdrafts (nore 16 T 383,070 247,297
Finance ieases incwe 16 5,899 6,125
Derivative financial nstrunerts (note 21) - -
Otrer creditors e 5 364 541

394 333

258 837

Group
2022

Amounts fallmg due after more than five years £000

2021
£000

B g

Bark loans and overdrafts (note 18] 573,416
f:narce gases (note 18] 24,676
Dervatve francial instrurrents (note 22 =
Trtal creditors fé;llrlg due after more than one year 992 425

577,235
24495

42 772
644 502

903,339

The Comparny hias no credrors due in greater than one year
Amounts owed o related parties are unsecured, non-interest bearng and repayable on demand

Note 26 detaiis tne pricr period agjustrrents.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
S8 oo L

2022
G‘roup E'000

O shaman e R oLl PMEERIbdea, o % NS Boadorien Y PERRE Banaaae o SE B REEEaweue o © T T Rheaan o % Whbwen o TT0E0E B b man w0 T RERCRouy TE

M Gre yc:arw 87,732

Due bewween one and fve years 383,070
573,416

1044218

e hes

2021

47385
247297

577,235

971918

EGDO

Tre Compary had no bark loans at 30 June 2022,

The bank loans are secured against assets of the Grous with each loan as niald by the subsidiary shown below:

Interest rate 2022

aa R " & month SONIA plus 160% 420,138
Cedar Energy ard Infrastructure Lirrited LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% -

3 month EURIBOR plus
1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70%

Elcs Cnergy & 1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079
Boomerang Erergy Lomited & month SONIA plus 1.50% 284,348
6.49% {swap rate of 4.58% +
19% marginj

ron Renewaile Energy 11 Lirmited 6 month SONIA plus 2 35% 85,718
Dutacca Wh Holdoo Phy utd 17% + BBSY 31,614

a, () -
Flva Homes omited 5% + SONIA + .2 =% non 12,306
utilisation fee

Yinere Fnergy Lir

Elos Energy 2 30,946

Darurgton Boins Solar karrr Py Lenited

114,026

Zesiec Asset Maragement Lirnitec Fixed rate 2.5% 43

1044218

o SERRGNRRA ke COURTEREERNN o TRERRSYREERwmmmia L% OTT £ BCRENLes (Y

34,995

295,344

103439

871,918

Finance leases

Tre future mirimurm finance leas

D
T8
QJu
b
v}
3
+
%3}
W
=
D
Y]
[}
—
Q
Q
2
w

2022

Payrnerts que
POt later than one year 2,428
ar thar ane year snd not laer har five years 5,899

76,461
84,788
(51,785)

33,003

£000

™ o
2o
S
&

3,166
6,196
72,013
81,375
(47609}
33,766

Tre Compary had no France leases at 30 Juns 2022
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

I R N T
Decommissioning (restated) {restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
Ar T July 2027 20439 20,933 41372
Increase recogrized ir prafcand loss 21 114935 11,516
Increase recogrised through Sther Cormprenensye INCore - 18,202 18,202
Impairmenrt 16 - 16
Increase recoqnised in fixed assets 23,656 - 236506
Recognised on subsidiary acguisiions - (3,568) (3.5868)
Adjustment in respect of prior years - (5.465) {5465)
wowinoing of dsconnt 249 - 249
Adjustment relatirg 1o changs n accouring estmate (3,.373) - (3373)
len ontensiason S 15 - o - 15
At 30 June 2022 41.023 41,597 82 620

The decornmussioning provision s held to cover future oblgatcns to rewrn lang o which there are
operaticna: wing, niomass and solar farms, o ther original condition The armcurts are not expected o be
utibzed *or in excess of 22 years

Tne Company Fad no orovisions at 30 June 2022

Mote 26 details the prior pericd aciustments.

I8 U Loae e SN0 ar L 0T oRD L en

The Groun ang Company have the following share capital

Group 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid o - o £000 E'CQ0
1616622 011 (2021 1455,755,258}
Ordinary shares of £0 10 each 161.662 149,676
Company 2022 2021
A{lotted called -up and fully pald S £000 £'000
1,616 { 0,755,255

61 62( J11 2021 1496755258, 161,662 149676

Ordinary shares of £0 10 each

Durinig tne year the Group issued 119,866,754 (2021 1,501.199.278 ) ordinary shares of £0 10 each for an
aggregate nominal value of £11.987.000 (2021 £750120.0001 Of the shares issuad during the year, total
cons.derzhon of £203,750,000 (2021, £2 316,695 000} was paid for e shares, giving rise to a premium of
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£191,762 00012021 2173 118,000) Durng the year the Group curchased ~i (2021 444240201 of 25 own
crdinary shares of S0 10 sach with an aggregzte normiral value of £nil ;2-\)21: E.444,-C-GD)‘ Toal consiaeration

of £ (2021 06,844 0005 was pa.d far the shares, giving rise to a presmium of

The Group nas adoptfed predecessor accouniing gnnaples as i was formed as part ©f a group
>construction, therefore the \hare caplial ana share premium account arc trested as if they nad aiways

existed Moverrents n share captal a

i~ the Group share caprai

ary shares of £0.10 sach for an
issued during tre year, tctal
Pwas paid for the shares, qiving rise B3 3 premiurm of

Curng the year trne Compary ssaed L8660, 754 (20021 1,501,195,
ag regate nominal value of £11 98/.000 (2021 £150C,120,000) Of
naiceraticn of £203 750 000 (2021 £2 G0}

1 9 1764000 2021 £2 166,575,003] ine year the Group ourchasad L2021 4,444 0207 oF t5 own
ordinary tha C each with a ate nomral value of £l (2021 £444,600) Towialco Sraton

of Ermil (2021 ?,6 844,3‘” C) was pad fof the shares, giving rise to 3 promium of £nil (2021 £6,359,000)

Trere iz a singte class of ordinary shares. Trere are rno resiciors on e cisinouticon of d v dends and the

recayment of capitst
Cash flow hedge reserve
The cagh flow Recge reserve 5 usee te record rarsactons ansimg from e Group's Cash flow

hedging arrangemsars

Merger reserve
Tre merger reserve ances from the difference bevween the farr vawe of the shares seues and the be
values of the cubudiaries acqurad

i9

The movemrentin ror-conraling rterecis was as allows

Group
Note 2022 2021

Hbe xe a7t v wmus & TekabExs 4 o iams wus o

3,721 9,570

Sale of subsidiary Lroertakings and accLE tion -
Of noar-cornts

erest

Toral comrorehensye 053 armbutable i

ron-controlling irevests

(6,622) (4.007)

sing Dotn oefore and afer the restructure are ~apcrted as Mmovemen(s

2'000 £000
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
20

As at 30 June 2022 there were No corungencies acress the Grouap or Company

o R R R A

Carrying amounts of fnanciat assets and habilives

Group Company

lrestated
2022 2021 2022 2021
Group £000 E£D00 £'000 £000

BRI BB ik B AR b Y BB R m b A b G 3 h ot PR AW E BA SRR SE R TEADY £ Y mmen kY Bt 08 AR Rk n bhimn At - o e b e TN R E BB BE Bt b FEID K ST b e

Carrying amount of financial assets
Debtinst-urments measurac at amortised cost 423,150 430,556 4,235 17767

Measured at fair value throl.gn proft and ioss - 6465 - -
A d at fair value throug: e Comprenens ve incom - - -

Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at arortised cost 1,126,163 256,384 76 16

Measured at fair value through otner comprehensye 1ncoime: - 42,772 - -

o)

Note 26 detals the prior penod ad,usiments




it
i
I

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
The Group's financia: nsk managerent seeks to minrmise the exposure to rmarket nsk, credit rsk, hguad ty
e

ge
and cash flow risk, and energy mark

a) Market risk
Energy market risk

The energy Secusr 5 exopernandirg signifcant wrbuence and there is a nsk that ‘orecast levels of income are

~r

not achieved due to changes in wholesale ene gy prices, off-rake contracis or government subsidies

Changes in Government policy, or regulaton interventon may result in requced income streas within t

group due to gadtaonal leves

Currency risk
Tre Group presaerts its corsoldatec Arancial statemerts in sterling andg coaducts business na numozer of
strer currencies, prncigally Zoro ard Australar dollan Conseguently, the CGrous is exposed to foreign

aop's trensaclional experses and the

excharge

sk aUe o exchanges rate movements, which affect the
ransialor, of earing and nel assets of s non-sterlng operat o7

Transactional exposures

TTansaciora. exposures arise from admimistrative and other exocnse ir currences other than the Group's

n to forward forcigr exchange and fore gn

presertational currercy (Sterling; e Group erte

conral

excharge swaps 1o mitigate the excrange rate risk for certamn fcrmgﬂ currency nayab.es and rece’pis. The
forward currency contracts and swaps are measured at fair valuc, which s determined us ng valuauon
echnicues rat utilse obzervable inputs The key nputs uscd in vaiuiﬂc the dervatives are the forwa:d

~r

d

excharge rates for GRFE A J? and GBPEUR O 30 Cune 2022 the fair va.ue of the foreign currercy

CoNracis was an asset of £l 12021 £6.468,000) ard a Hacity of Lol (2221 £143.200)
Translational exposures
Balance sheet ranslabional exposore o conso: cation on e retranslabion of tre balance sneet of

G
ing operations irto stering, the Grouo's preseniational currency The level of exposure is reviews

non-ste

by maragement and the potertal foreigr exchange movemenrt is w thin a- accepiable level of risk ana

treretors, wypicasy, e (;fo-ups pohcy W not o actively hedge frese exposures

Interest rate risk
Trhe Group Nas exposure o fluctuations 0 oirmterest rates on g borrowings. Where the Group erters inte
Lorrow mg arrangerments with fleairg rate interesy, a swao arrangemer:is enered nto o Fx 3 gornicn of

The interest 1n orcer o mitigate atamst an increase in rterest rates.
assesIed o7 3 Case Ly caie 0as's Maragement can elect whether 1o hedge LNt for these

a"angemefts on A individuat ransact.or bass and ave ele

g Qf rlerest

rale 3wans, | he swaps ars bated ¢~ g orropalamouari of tne ! tre on the same date
r

O 30 June 2022 tre cutstanaing interest rats swars nave g marunly ir 2x

£54405 0002027 labi ty ::‘ E42 €25 500;

ve years and the far

Price risk

The Groun s a 570 10 med um-terrs lerdes 1o tre resige-tal preperty mar<et, 7o the extenttnat trere s

ceenorahiaor in e level 0 house crice = propernes thatthe Group's ioans are securen
aga ~st trhere s ar s« mal tre Groun rmay ot recous it ful exposure Thisis mitigated by tre shorr-rerr
ratuse of tre loars ard the conservative leve, of (oar 12 value 173t the Group 1s preparec o lend at

|
]




&
i

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Credit risk
Customer credit risk 1s rnitigated through the Group's cred-t conuol polimies, which are in place to ensure
that our customers have ar appropriate cradst history and are reanitored on ar orgeng basis

c} Liquidity risk

L quidity risk are managed by ensuring that sufficient cash is avalacte to fund continuing and futare coeraiions.

Liguidity risk anses or ban< loans in place across the Group and 1s maraged trrough careful menitoriag of
covenants and sens ble levels of debt Borrowims s on a long-term bas s, whereas our revenun s received
throLghout the year, as we: as interest and redempticors on our short-terrm oan baox Cash fiow risk s
maragec througn orgomg cash flow forecasting to ensure receipts are sufficient 1o meet lailities as they

fall cue
P O S T T LR S L
A tne year end the Group had capitas commitiraaents as foliows

2022 2021
Group £000 £00C
Contracted ff, but not providad in tnesa financial staterrents 347,254 90,156
Undrawn facilites on (Gans 1D DoIrrowers 173,600 92,683

AL Z0 June the Group baa toal future monimrum lease payrments under ron-canceliable cperatirg iegses
as follows:

2022 2027
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buitdings
- £000 o N £:000 £'Q00
Rayrnents due:
MOt iater than one year 8,707 661 8,031 749
Later than ore year and riot later than five 31,627 726 30,369 1,686
YOErs
Later than five years 95,664 - 1’8 932 9
135,993 1,387 157,332 2444
Tre Group had no other off-balance sheet arrangements (2021 nonel
Under sections 354A and 479A of the Companies Act 2006, the parert company Fern Tradng Limited Fas
guaramteﬂd all outstanding labiities on those companies taking the exemiption to wrich the subsidiaries list

an pages 7% 10 90 were subject to at the 30 June 2022 urti trey are satished in full These labilties tata
£915m. Such guaranftees are enforceable aga:nst Fern Tracing Limited by any person to whom any such

The Company bad no capital or other commitments at 30 June 2022
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On il JuEy 2022, Fern Tradirg Development Limited (FTDLY, a subsichary of the Group, succ HSS‘:JH‘] =old

Darlingten Point Holdco Pty Limited to Cciopas Australia Master Trust A small profit of E8S0.000 was made

on the sale.
On the is: of December 2022, the Group acowrad rights ta a2 £25m cradt voucher and the rgrt to use
rmotle acerses from Three UK via a Srate

-

ity Agreemiant tius making tr t

(B

[ towaras

Ao
a3t
U

becorning an mobiie virrtual network operator.

24 -

Under FRS 102 33 1A disciosures need not be given of ransacthons eneed nto hetweer two or maore

members of a Groap, prov.ded that any supsiciary whichis a party 1o the trarsaction s wnolly owned oy
such a memiber.

unng ine year fees of £7/934 0 G21. £62,154,000) were chargeg 0 e Group by Ocilopus
latea partf fiur: s sigmitcant nfluence over re entity Ooopus vestments
Limited was recharged legat and proffs ona. fees tolalling £10,055 (2021 £16,6C0) by tre Groap. AL the

na
vear end, ar amount of £5 500 (2021 £212.000]) was cutsta~ding which s inciuded n rrade crediors.

lrvestrnents Limited, a re

Tne Growp is entitled (o a profit share as a result of 13 investiment n Terido L_P a =.a1ed party cue to key
common ir 2022 a share of proft equa: to £5.243 00C (2021 £44% 0081 nas
Deen recognised by the Group, At *“‘e yezr ed, the Group has an werest 1o tne mermber’s capital of

£35,452,0C0 {20 00 (2027 £475,C00)

MANAZEMent persanne in

2760

CE1L.000,000) and accrued income due of £5

in

Tre Group engages i4 lendirg actreties which include balances ¢

ergtes witry <ey marsgerient personnes i common, loans of £6

noome of £19.780,000 (2027 £26 203.G00 a~d deferred ncomre of Er:a el 3, C00) were outstarding
at year end. Durng the year interest mcome of £7150,000 (2020 2172810000 and fees of £354,000 (2021

2536 0001 were recognised In relation to these loars.

During tne year tne Grous acquired 2 reserve power cormoanies from compeanies managed by Octepus

Irvestments Limited, a related party See noie 27 al for details of the companies acguired.

Asat 30 June 2022 £nl (2020 £3950,275) was owec to the Comuoany by Bracken Trading Lim ted, a relatec
riy by ey marageren: personnet in cormmaon

Crther than the trarsacucr-s gisciosaed aoove, tne Comoa \y'S other reigled party transachiors were wi thits

‘the Groun.

Wholly ownec’ cubsidiary members ¢

2 T A : -

inthe ooimon of the deegiors, there s »g Wlbmate corrslirg oarty or parert compary
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
26 T over o ao s rer s

a) Group structuring review

We have conaucted a review of orior years’ accounting treatment of irtercompany restructunng In this
review manacement identified unamornsed gocdwill balances i relation to these transactions. We have
adjusted the previous years to reflect the implementation of amaortisation backdated to wnen the relevart
transactions occurred. Tre accurrulaied mpact for the goodwill amartisation in the profit and loss for 2027
was Z8m (20200 £5 Zm) the movernert of £2 7m has been restated throughout the 2021 comparative
numbers A zummany oF e imoact of the correction s provided betow

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group E'000 £000 .. ER00

Gooowil 583988 (5,3235) 578653
Retaned esrmings 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

{as stated) {restated)

Gowp - £000 £'000 £°000
Goodwitl 602,711 (8,049) 594 6672
Retgmed earmings {123,520) 8,045 (115,871)

As part of the review of the inwergroup restructuring mertiored above, management identined one of the
restructures had been incorrectly accounted for in a2 sul section of the group. NG “urther erors wer
discovered in the review. The accumulated rrpact for gocdwill amortisation in the profit and oss for 2021
was 22.5m (2020 £1.3m), the movement of £1.2m has been restated throughout the 2021 comparative
numbers This impac to the 2020 opening retares earnings was offset by £2 1m wiritten back aganst bad
debt exgenses Management have corrected the identfied error witn the following impact:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group E'000 - EOOO " 'OOOW‘
Goodwil ' ( 583,988 (29.183) 554805
Aetaincd earnings 41,185 895 42,084
Lebtors 842,549 (2,724) 839,825
Creditors amounts falling due within one year (232,813} 456 (232.317)
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1.377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
Group £000 £'000 £'000
qucwm R e e o
Retained sarmings (123,920} (321 (124,241}
Dentors 600,726 (2,724} 598,002
Creditors” amourts failing due within one year (207.318) 456 (206,822

Fixed assets 1,551,170 30,512 1,581,682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment

We have conducted a review of a3l consclidauon enti ne group We nave ide~tfed an
error reiating to 2019 wren celfered tax adiustments were entered az 3 consoldatlion ety and rac

subseqguently rnot been reversad, We have crecked the tax per su "J‘c"r‘/ account and have ersured that the
relevant balances are correct, The arror was sosted at a consolidated leve!l only anc has now been correcteg:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)

Group £000 £000 £°000

SORPSEPOEIERS SN0 SN 0 VAL 33 D32 TR L ks v assesns v e Eak SEARATERE b e AR KT 4w e s 6 % s S NS R VR iy e e A GRS BT ML ERERA RN R A YR BYaRg Y

Retaned earnirgs 41,185 14,764) 36,421
Crackitors amausis fadng dug wittn one year (232.813) 4764 {228,049)

Tris has a knock effect inte June 2021, e estated balances ars gt follows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 202% 30 June 2022

(as stated) {restated)

o £000 £000 E£'000

Retained arrings 1123,9245) (4,764} 128,684
Credicrs amour Is faling aue watrir one year (207.318) 4,764 (202,554;

assurnplion i orav-ous years tax consaication catculatiors Withir tre creviously unrecognsed deferred 1ax
S

N preparng the tax computations for 2022, the Grouo's tax advisors have notices an overiookeas

assels rela with it the group some were avalatle on 2 consclicated leve, 10 offset the Group's defarred tax

)>

tac%téw‘ Or an indwidual compary bazis the deferrea tax in previous years nad been correctly recoarises.
¥ ¥

part of these W‘Prmd assets ara in relaton o cast flow hedges reld wihin the group wh'eh are accourieg

o with r Gther comprebersive income, Tn
Zwas B15m 2020, £15 37 the movement of 300k has been restated through out the 2021
COMMparative numuoers,

couaralated .nrpact for the tax charge nthe profit and loss

Asummigry of tne -mpact of the correcion s provided below.

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated) (restated)

Group o £'000 E'OOO £'000
Retaned earrings 41,185 (15,259) 25886
Cash ‘tows hedge reserse 63,837 (2.875) 59,962

Deferrad 1y prowv's (36,484} 19,174 L,AO;
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Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)
) £'000 ‘000 £000
” e (123,920) Tusoex T nzeoin
Casn fiow negne reserve 17,098 (2,119) 14,879
Delerred tax provisions {38,145} 17,212 (20.933)
Summary of prior period adjustments:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020

{as stated) (restated)
Group o o £000 £000 £000
Bu{;;;t]:;;ugg::I-‘g:l};'; aaaaa F4EARS b0 o hadtt b 0 kb kb xovoonviodt FRExdavwiohE YoT, ¥ Shxe 41'185 (13‘829) e 27356
Goowil 584988 34,517} 549,471
Debtors 842,543 (2,724} 839,825
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1,377,167
Defered tax prov-sicns {36.484) 19,174 (17.310;
Cash flow hedge reserve 63837 (3 875) 59,962
Creditars arnounts falling due within one year {232.813] 5259 (227.554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

{as stated) {restated)

Group ~ E'000 £'000 E'QOO’

Retained eamngs e 1250000 {12,129 (126.049)
Gooowil 602,711 {36,011) 566,700
Cebtors 500,726 (2.724) 598,002
Fixed assets 1551170 30.512 1,581,682
Deferred tax provisions (38.145) 17,212 (20,933}
Cash fiow nedge reserve 17.098 {2.119) 14,979
Creditors amaourits faling due within cne year (207,318} 5.25% (202,059}
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T L

a) Reserve Power acquisition
On 2 Suly 2022, the Group acguired S reserve power sites through the purchate of 100% of the share captal
18,

(8]
hiy
Fh

for corsideratinn &

ne following tacles surnmanse the consideratior gad oy the Group, the “air va.ue of tre assels acoured,

nd The lab.iues assumed at the acquiisiton date

a8}

Cons:deratlon ) £'000

P — P mt e et R ARRERSEST 0 brr 0 0L il wiaiateRRAS RSRSRE SN Y Riiiicn

\def -

Total conmderat:on -

Detals of the farr valee of the net assets acguirea ana goodwil ansing are as follows

Book value Adjustments Fair value
£000 EOOO EOOO

Fixed assers 80,758 ' 28, 553! 52 733
Trade and cther recervables 254 - 294
Prepayiments 635 - 635

Cash anc cash eguivalerts 7858 - 7858
Tracde and oyeer Lreniior: {2.208) - (2,206}
Loans (58, 816‘ - (58,816)

2g, 553 (28,553) -

Total cons:deratlon -

Soodwll resuling from tne Susicess comrtination was ril.

Tre consclaates sfatement of cormprebens ve income for tne year includes £45 803,000 revenue and &
crofic after tax of £686 000 n resoect of thiz acquisition
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Doveryard Limited acquisition
Gn 22 Getoher 2021, the Group acquirec Soveryard Limited and its subsidiary through the purchase of
100% of the share capral for consideration of £13,414,000.

The foliowing tables summmanse the consacqation paid by the Group. the far value of assets acguired, and
liabilizies assumed at the acguisition sate

Consideration R €000
o . e s e s e ST N A 7 e, e 12!377“,
lfeftl,f artvinutable c 1.037
Total conSIdera;;on T e w 13,414

Detals of the far va.se of the ret assets acquired and goodwil arising are as follows:

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
S ) £000 _E000 £000
— VT — e AR o
race and cther receivables 52 - 52
“repayments and accrueg noome 193 - 193
Trade and other cr@dwtovg (467 - (467}
Netassetsacquired " zay 37
oo e e e - NNWMWHMB 06{.“
rotal cons:deratlon O U S 13 414 -

Goodwil: resclting from the business combination was £13.067.000 and nas an estimated useful life of 25
vears, reflecting the lifespar of the assets acquired

The consalidated statement of comprehensive incorme for the year includes £nil of reverue and a toss
before tax of £123 200 in respect of tris acguistion
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c} Dulacca acquisition
O 27 August 2021, tre Group acaured Dulacces

deo

WE Holdao

purchase of 100% of the snare capaal for cansigeraton of

S 30 JUNE 2022

Trefo. ?cwmg tables summarise the consideration paid Dy the Group, the *a't value of the asse

B achured,

PTY Lid and its three suosiaiaries thrawgh the
£115.680,000

and 1 aoiiies assumie at the acqguinition date A list of the entites acaoired inc.udes in note 24
Conslderatron AUD’OOO Exchange Rate £000 ]
Directiy attnoutable costs 1.126 1.8604 595
Total consideration 218683 115,680
Detais of the fai- value of the net assets acquired arnd intangible arising zre as follows.
Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair
values value values value
AUD'OOO AUD'O(O‘O AUD 000 E’OOO £000 _£'000
Trade and other recesahlos 10,121 - 10131 5,357 - 5,357
Cash ang cash equivalents 103,072 - 103,072 54525 - 54,525
f\;u ; m fi”ferr WO flO 452) - (1 0, 91; (5 79?‘ - () 793]
Net assets achIred 209 884 2 209 884 111 026 R 111 026
Wam m ....... - e e e 8 799 - S ‘%54
Totai con.ﬂderat:on N 218 683 - 1.1.5 680”

irian gwbk S esUltmg frem the «

reflectin e lifespan of the assets acquired

e staternent of ¢
r of this acguisnor

3
tax of £227 000 in respec

sset purcnaze was £4.654 000 and has an e

arrprehensve income for the year Incaudes £nil of r

stmated usefu. e of 30 years,

ovenue and o 0ss arter
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d} Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 January 2021, the Group acquired Zestec Asset Margement Lirmated a project sources for rooftop
salar, tnrough the p'_jr-:l"-ase of 100% of tne share capial for consweration of £4,765,008.

The foliowing tables surmanses the consiaeration paid by the Group. the fair value of assets acguired. and
labilities assurned a: the acguisinon date.

Consideration £ 000
ash 367 2

[eferred consweralion -

Cirectly atrnbutasle costs 1093
Totai consnderatmn ------------------------------ o o e 4 765
Detans of the fair vaiue of the net assats acaured and goodwill ansirg are as (ollows.
Book Adjustments Fair
values value
E£'000 £'000 £'000
Fixeg ascets o 156 - 156“’
“rade and oiner credmens (574) - (574)
Trarde and other recewvabies 400 - 400
Cash and cash eguiva.ents 1719 - 1,012
\*her \oar‘ (46) - (46)
Net assets aéqmred S 955 - M955
'rotai_c-{mgder;t—._;;m e e em et e e £ e s e o e h ok mea s+ L < s semesRan % e e« e e e e m4;65

Goodwil, resuiting from the busiress combnation was £3,810,000 and has an estimated useful life of 10
yaars, reflecting the estimated ifespan of the assets accuired

53]

he corscidaxd statement of comprehensive income for the year includes £198,000 of revenue and a los
before tax of £494 000 in rescec: of this acquisition




4

FINA

§

NCIAL STATEMENTS

30 NE 2024

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e} Etivia Homes acquisition
On 27 May 202

rrar se the

Consideration

o e BRS¢

Cash

SRRBARERSIONATAL | b AR YT

Cirecs \y sttroutal

Total cons:deratlon

2, the Grotp acquired Elvia He
100% of the share capital for cons de

e acoust on

iats!

s Limi 1 ts sunsicianes, throl

[sxiel! i wed ar ugr e pu
raticn of £21,684 000,
corsiderghion pad by the Groug, e ‘a7 vawe of assets red, ard
dawe. Alist of the entities acquires are included ir note 29
£000

30,999

31,684

Detads of the fair value of the net
irtangitzle assats

5%

Trade and ciher deptars

Cashrana cash eguivalonts

Accraals and deferred sncorne

Provigicns

Deferred tax

Net assets acqulred

Soodwatl

Total consideration

assets scquired and goodwii ansing are as follows
Book Adjustments Fair
values value
£ 000 E 000 E'OOO

418
11767
£9,039
2609
11,603
(420)
(3300
4,600
(69,453)
30,133
15l
31,684

418
1,767
69,959
2609
11603
420)
©30)
£.006
(69.452)

31,533

11.400)

aoo)

Goodw il resultng from tae busmes

e
5 SOt

moinator was £1 551,000 ana has an esumated useful afe of 0

years, reflecung e Ufespan of the assets acquree
Tre consolidatea starement of Corprebhensve ncome for the year incudes revenue of £25024.500 and g
crofit oefore tax of £1.5C2 000 11 respect of this acguisit.e
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Our reported results are prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standargs, irciuding
Financial Reporting Standard 102, as detailed in the Financial Stetements starting on page 35 of the Annual
Regort. In meaasuring cur performarnce, the financial measJres that we use nclude those that have been

dernved from cur reported results i order 1o elirmimate factors that distort year-cn-year compansons Trase
are considerad nor-GAAP financ

al measures

Net debt
We provide ne: dent 1 addition tao cash and gross debr as 2 way of assessing odr overall cash pasition and it
S ]

S computed &3 fol.ows

2022 2021
Bars loans ard overdeafts T T 1044218 871918
14,15 5,364 -
" Lossssz  erLe1s
(1/2.478)
699,440

Gross debt

793,167

Cash st bank ard i 1and i (256,415}

Net debt

asieeis. .
shaipity

SR Eh by -

5
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

EBITDA

Earnirgs oefore irterest, 1ax, deprecizlion and amorisaton UEBITODAY is caicilated by agjusting orofit afer
tax for sterest, tax, deprecatior and amoriusation, 1 addivon to ncome anc expenses that do rot relate to
tre day to day coerat’cns of the Groun We proviae EBITDA in adaitor o pro©t after tax as it allows us o

assess our performance without trhie effects of financing and cap a3l exoenditures
The foiowing tabie derails the adjusiments made to the reported results,

{restated)
2022 2021

Note £000 £'Go0

o eap messsene s mae wio o

Profit/{loss) for the fin
Ada

ancial year 31,310 {31.012)

Arnortizat.on of irtangiol ? 37.849 37704
8 7913 -

2 101,802 84,697

Irnpairrrent of intarg be

Deprec-at'or of tang ke o

Ireerest pavabio and sirnilar coenses 5] 35554 36,067
Lxceptioral items 1105 -

Tax 7 16,294 8,349

Ircome from other fived asset nvesternts (5,249} [449)
Shara of cosatag proatingoInt verure - (1,755)

Frofit or a.sprsa of sebsidiares (79,537} (£8.558]
Irterast receivabie ard sirmilar incorme 6 (120} %97

EBITDA - S - 194,915 o 164,05:5

B by R R RS L E S TR R B SR B T v e e axe

Note 26 details the prior period adiustiments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
29 oo

Details of the subsiciary undertakings are as foliows:

Country of Class of Principat

Name v, Jncorporation shares  Holding activity
Abbats Rigtan Solar Crergy ﬂctdrgl_wted UK Ordina;y Holding company
Adalirda Solar 5PV 1 Lmited™ UK Ordinary 1006% Erergy generation
Agrisol-Z SARL? france Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Al Networks Limiteqd™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Aliports Tipre Limied®™ UK Ordinary 100% girt;rgunc?z\rfwork
Auchencarroch Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Adguhne Land Company wimited™" LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Avenue Solar Farm Limited™ LK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Banbury Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Batisniaire 5 SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Baisoare 7 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Beetiey Energy Liritaed™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Beighten Energy Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
Bemnewn Wind Farm L™ UK Crdinary 1007% Energy generation
Bellhouse Energy Livited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generaticn
Birch Estate Sclar Lirnited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Blaby Sclar Farm Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
BNRG ICW Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Bolarm Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Boomerang Energy Lirmited UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Boreas Energy Limited™ LK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Brattor Fleming Limiteg’” UK Qrdinary 1007% Energy generation
Breck Soiar Lirniteq™ LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
E?’WTW;CU’M solar Deveiopments Heloings UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Bryn Yr Ddyn Sclar Developrnents Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Bury Fower Limiteg” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cadoxton Resarve Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Caicias Znergy Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company

Cark Lirnited® ireland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of
hl\.?iwe incorporation shares
Caswel Sotar Farm wimrited”™ IJK Ordinary
Cathker: Erargy —mied®” UK Crdinary
Causitgey Lmitea” UK Ordinary
Ceadar trergy and Infrastructure Larnted UK Ordinary
CE=E Berceronre SARY France Ordinary

s ~lienrma de Preducoon d Srerai

(r;;ftdagfjfé ?Tx;m de Preducion d Zrergie de Framce Ordinary
CEZE de la Salesse SARLT France Ordinary
g £ PE. ag La'r:orV:be (Certrale E::m\erwne de France Ordinary
Proguction ¢ Frergie de Lacomnbel SARL

CIPE g= Marsarne SA7RL7 Frarce Crdinary
CIPE Hau du Saule’ France Ordinary
CEFE de la Roche Guatre Ry eres SARLY France Ordinary
CERE du pays de Tt Seine SARLT France Ordinary
CERSSAS France Ordinary
Chetseon Meadow Energy L ed” UK Ordinary
Crilspor So.ar Farm Holdings [irmeod' UK Crdinary
Crittering Soar Two Limitea™ UK Ordinary
Clgwyn Energy Limited” UK Ordirary
Ciarn Farre Loriten” UK Ordinary
Clararmnond Solar SPY L Lmited™ UK Ordinary
C.= Develooments Lirmted’ UK Ordinary
CL=2 Ervirogas Limited” Ui Crdinary
CL= Serv:ces Limited” UK Crdinary
CL=E 1931 Limied” UK Crdinary
CL=E 18G5 Lim ed UK Ordinary
CLPE Ho.dings Lmited UK Ordinary
CL=E 2Proggecte L Ui tea UK Crdinary
CL~E ~rgjects 2 Lim e UK Ordinary
CLPE Projects 2 Lirited” UK Ordinary
CLPE RGC -1 Lirrited UK Ordinary
CLPE ROC - 2 Limiec UK Ordinary
CLPE ROOC - 2 Lirureg’ UK Ordinary

Hp;din
100%
100%
100%
100%
1C60%
160%
100%

100%

100%
160%
100%
100%
160

38

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal
g activity

R VR AR frh R b 8 s K Yo

Energy generation
Fnergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
Energy generat.on
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Holding cormpany
Energy generaticn
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of Q&M
services

Dormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Halding company
Energy generat.on
Energy generation

Energy generaticn
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name .
CLPE ROC - 3A Lirvited”

CLPE ROC - 4 Limited™

CLPE RCC — 4A Limiteg™

Cyre Power Limiteg™

Coisterworth Energy L muted”
Connon Bridge Erergy Limiied™
Cotesbach Enegy _imited”

Cour Wird Farm Scotand) L rizes™™

Craprel Farm Jimited™

Crayfern Homes [Scuth Coast) Limired?!
Crayfern Limitad®*

Crayfern Surley (Slinfaid) Limiwed!!

Craymarsh Lim.ted”

Cressing Solar Farm Linted™

Culvery Power Limited™

Cynon Fower Lirmitad”

Dafer Reserve “ower Limitea’™

Da-ry House Solar Limmited™

Deepdaie Farm Solar Limited™

Coveryard Limited”™

Drapers Farm Limited”™

Dulacca Energy Project Co PTY Lid’?
Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Lid!?
Dulacca Energy Project Holdco Co 2Ty Liail
Dulacca WF Holdeo P1Y Ligh?

Dyffryn Brodyn Limited”
Eakring Limited™

Elecsol Camargue SARL?
Elecsel France 7 SARLY
Elecsal France 11 SARLY
Elecsol France 15 SAR.?

Fiecsol France 19 SARLY

T AT Y g Sy O S R P R 64 A

Country of Class of
incorporation sllgrggw o
UR .Ord\;"wary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
Australia Ordinary
Australia Qrdinary
Australia Qrdinary
Australia Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
France Crdinary

Holding activity

1G0%
1002
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

160%

100%

160%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
10C%
100%
100%
10G%
100%
100%
100%
90%

Principal

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Develcpment of
buildirg projects

Caonstruction of
domestic buiidings

Develcpment of
building projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding cornpany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation

ARG b
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares  Holding activity
Elecso. France 22 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Ernergy gereration
Clecso, France 24 SARL® Frarce Crdinary 100% Energy generat:on
Flecso France 25 SARL? France Ordinary 160% Energy generation
Flecso. France 28 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy gereration
Elecso. France 41 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Flacso. Haur Var SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elios Energy # France SAS® France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eliog Energy 2 Lirr wed UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Elios Energy 3 Frarze SASY France Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eligs Erergy Howlings 2 _imites”™ IJK Ordinary 1C0% Hclding company
Elios Energy Hoiwings 2 Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Elios Energy Holdings Limitea” UK Crdinary 106% Holding company
Elics Renewable Energy imited™ UK Ordinary 1G0% Holding company
L .- ‘ Construction of
ivia Developrnent Finance Lired- % .
Eivia Developrment Finance Lirted UK Ordinary 160% domestic bulldings
Ordinary Financial services
Enwsa Holdings Lirrited UK Deferred 100% Pl E SLTVESS
holding companies
Freference
Chs L i S B . . Construction of
Ehvia Homes (Certral uimited UK Ordinary 100% . L
domestic buildings
N . L 0 : . Constructicn of
Elivia Homes (Dormant 21 Limited UK Ordinary 100% . o
domestic buildings
) . Construction of
Elvia Homes (Grange Road) Liruteg™! { jina % ) -
lvia Homes (Grange Road) Lirited UK Crdinary 100% domestic buitdings
velonrm f
Clviz Homes iNetley) Lmited*? UK Crdinary 100% De»xeloprref:t “
/ outlaing projects
5 . f i
Elvia Homes (Southern) Limited* UK Ordinary 100% tons rucnorj O.f
domestic buildings
Eivia Homas (Surb ton) Lmited™! UK Ordinary 100% Construction of
domestic buildings
Suva Homes Lmited™t UK Ordinary 100% Dervel.opmem of
cudding projects
Ehvia Norin L red UK Ordinary 100% Deveiopment of
Lutlding projects
Construction of
Elvia Seford Limteat UK Ordinary 100% domestc buildings .
Buying and selling of
own real estate
. . £ i f
Eilvia Soutn L mited™ UK Ordinary  100%  -onswuctiono

domestic buildings
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

Elra Southern Limiced?s

Elicoroe Limited™

Erergy Power Resources Limited”™

£PR Ey Limited”

EPR Eve Limited”

ERR Glanford Limited™

EFR Renewable trergy Limited”
EPR Scotland Limiteg™”

EPR Thetiord Limitea™

Eucalyptus Energy =Holdimgs Limiteg*
Eucalyptus Energy Lmited™

Feitwell Znegy Limitea™

Fern Erergy Cour Holdings LUmined”
Fern Erergy Holdngs Limited”

Fern Energy Limied”™

Fern Energy Wind Howings Limited”
Fern Fibre Limited™

Fern Healincare Holdings Limited™
Fern Infrastructure Limited”™

Fern Renewable Energy Limited™
Fern Rooftop Solar (A} Limiten™
Fern Rooftop Solar (BID

Fern Rooftep Solar (Zestacl Lirmited™
Fern Tradirg Development Limited™

Fern Trading Group bmited

Ferrn UK Power Developmerts Lmited”

Firophos Limited™
Four Burrows Limited””

Fraisthospe W nd Farm Limitea™

RS B L BR R 2ht s Y e e TR

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares Holding activity
Conslructor\ of
UK Ordinary  100% giﬁ:ﬁ;?ﬁéﬂﬂgz f
own real estate
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Energy project
UK Ordinary  100% Sf:f;g';m:tt and
Services
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding compary
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordmnary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordmnary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 100% Haolding company
UK UK 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

iy g AL TR T SN PR PR SR L LA TR R EATEERE Axs e ma

Garlaff Energy Limited®
Giganet Fiore Ltd”™
Giganet Lirnited™

Gernchamber Aird Erergy Lemited="

14 Farrn Limrotedd™

Crange Vir
Guardionide SP z.o o
Harbourne Power Limited™

Hayrmaker (Mount M) Lid™

Haymaker (Narewcoo, Holdings Limiteg™

Haymeker {Matewooc; Lid™

Haymakar {Qakards) Hold.rgs Limited™
Haymaker {Oakiaras) Lta™

Helm Power 2 Limiteg”™

Helm Power Lmied”

Higher Knapgp Farm Limiteg™

Hill End Farm Limitec™”
Holiarmoor Lriten™

Hull Reserve Power Lrited”
Hursit SPY 1 Limitad ™
irmminghkarn Power Lir tod'™
irvyell @ower Lirmired™

Jameszor Road Energy Lmited”™

Jurass'c Fibre Holdings Limmited™
Jurass'c Fibre Limiten

Kr Poweer Lim ted™
Larigan Power Lrr wed”

Lenrar Solar Limvted™

Ltrleton Solar marm _rmeed”™

Country of Class of
Jncorporation shares
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK QOrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK QOrdinary
Poland Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK COrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK QOrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
IJK Ordinary
UK COrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

. Holding _ activity

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
1C0%
100%
160%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
90%

Principat

Dormant company

Fibre network
production

Fiore network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Haolding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generat-on
Haolding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
tnergy generaticn
Energy generaton
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
producton

Energy generation

S RN AL R 0 B
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

otk e

Lovedean Limited™

Lumirance Sc.ar Limiteg™
M1Z2 Lolusons Limied”™
tarston Thorne Lirmied™
March Energy Lirnted™
Marden Power Limited”
Mariey Thatch Solar Limited™
Meadows Farm Limited™
Melbourn Sclar L mited™
Meltor _G Energy Limited™

Melter (G Holding Lirnized”

Melton UG ROC Limeteg™

Melton Renewable Tnergy (moldings) Limited™

Melton Henewsble Energy Newco Limited™

Melton Renewakbie Energy UK Lirmied
Mili Hill Farm Solar Limied™
Mingay Farm Helding Lirmiied™
MSP Decoy Lid™

MSP Strete Lid™

MSP Tregassow Limited™

MTS Hatchiands Solar Lid™
Nevern Power & mited™

New Row Farm Limuted™
Newlands Sclar Limvited®

MNinnis Farm Lireited™

North Ferrott Fruit Farm Limited™
horthwich Power Limi teg™
Mowes Tnergy Limated”

Ogmaore Power Limited™

Oldhall Energy Recovery boldings Lirmited*

One Ashford Realthcare Limited

One Hatfeld Hospial Limited

e bk 8

Country of Class of Principal
incorporation shares% - Holding activity

UK Ordinary 100% Eﬁergy generation
K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1002 Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Qrdinary 1007% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1G0% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 1007% Holding company
UK Ordinary  100% ’ééfigfj;'”g

LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 10G% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 89% Eégnifar:;;ervices
UK Ordinary 90% Pravision of

heaithcare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principat
Name - incorporation shares Holding ‘activity
Cne Heaithcare Fartrers Lirited UK Ordinary 85% Haolding company
Crta Wedgehili Solar Holdings Lirnired™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Ora Wedagern:li Solar Limites™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Falfreys Sarton Lirrited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Parciau Holdings Lmited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Parciau _imeted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Park Sroadband Limmited” UK Ordinary 160% Fibre ne:twork
production
Pearmar Solar 2 Ld™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Puchford (Cordover Arfie’a & Stec<hach) .
Lm:”rtojr cordover Ahets & Slecsberchy LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Pitts Farm L ed” UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
Porthos Solar Limited” LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Pyms Lane Solar Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cueens Park Road Energy Limitad” UK Ordinary 1607% Energy generation
Rangeford Care Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Care SErces for 2
retirement village
Range‘ord Criertsey Lirritesd” UK Ordinary 100% Retirernent village
developrnant
Rangefora Cirerceaster Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Retrement village
development
Range‘ord Dorking Limized”” UK Crdinary 100% retirement village
development
Rengeord Hoidings Lim ted™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Rangeford Pic«ering Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Retirement village
development
v ulla
Rangefora RAP Limited™” UK Crdinary 100% Retrement village
developrment
Hangeford Petrerment Lving Holdinge Lid™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
- . - . Y i t, =
Rargetord Srasiatord Limsed” UK Crdinary 100% Retrement village
development
Regches farm Lirmited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Redlake Powar imrieg™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Rysion fstate L mired™ Uik OCrdinary 100% Energy generation
Samrnat SARLS France Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Seiby Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
SFP Fibre Linr ceg® UK Ordinary  100%  Terenetwork

production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
N i e s incorporation _ shares Holding activity e
Singrug Holdings Limiteg™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Stngrug Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy gerneration
Six Hils Lane {Ragdale; Lirnited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Skelbrooke Energy Lirr ted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
tlansgntergate Limited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Snetterton Renewable Power Fuels mited” UK COrdinary 106% fSuueplply of biomass
Sretterton Senewable Power Holdirgs Lirated™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
tnetterton Renewable Power L mited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sciarf 1208 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Scrarf SPOLSARS France Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Solarf SPO2 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solars SPG4 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sclars SFOS SARLY France Ordinary 1600% Energy generation
Sclarf SPOS SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SP10 SARL® France Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
Scuthcomoe Farm Lirmitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
St Asaph Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
Steadfast Parkrouse Solar Lirited™ UK Qrdinary 100% energy generation
Sreadfast Rudge Soisr Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Sreadfast Shipton Belinger Solar Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stellar Power Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stoneyhil: Energy Lirmted® UK Crdinary 100% Dormant company
Sulis Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Surmimerston Fnergy Lirmiied®” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Suriey Crayfarn Lavan: LLPY UK NA 50% NA
Swish Fiore Contracting Lirnited® UK Ordinary 100% ;irt;rsurﬁit;vnork
Swish Figre Limited® UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
Swish Ficre Networ<¢ Ltd® UK Ordinary  100% ;irzrguzeﬁt;"nork
Swish Fibre Serices timired® UK Crdinary 80% ?r%rsurggfrk
Swizh Fire Yorkshire® UK Ordinary 100% Fibre netwark

production

Swish Trading Limited”™ UK Ordinary 80% Holding company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

R ——

TGC Solar 102 Lim
TGO Saolar 107 Crited™

TGC Solar 68 Hirndted™

TGO Salar 83 Limited™

Tre Fern Power Company Limited”
Tne Holies Solar Farm Limiited™
Thoresoy Estate (Budby) Lirrted”
Tlrnighars Power Limirea™

Todnilic Energy wmited”

Traagown Farm L tod”

Turves Sclar Limiteg™

UKSE 15 Soar ormied™

United Mires Energy Limited”

VOCSE Lra™

Victoria salar timited™

Viners Energy Lamited

VItRH Limited”

Voltafrance G5 SARL?

Yoltafrance 28 SARL

4

Yoliafrance SARL®

Vorboss Lirmited™
Vorboss S ing?
Wadswick Green Limited™

AT e N “
Wagswic 5

sreen Property Tervices Jated”

Country of

Class of

incorporation shares

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK

K

France
France
France
France

UK

USA

LUK

UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK

v b g

Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

T

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100C%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Holding ac’;ivity

Principal

Energy generation

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Halding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy gereratian
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy gereration
Hoiding company

Fibre network
productcn

Energy gereraton
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Retrement village
operator

Service charge
administrator

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal !
Name . et e e o corporation shares =~ Holding activity =~ o !
m:gthﬂrde Fr“mro; LTm ted” o ~ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generatlon ;
Wharf Power Limnsted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whicgdor Farm Limijteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation ;
Whinney Hill Znergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation 3
Winceile solar Holdings Limied™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Wolverhamptan Power Lid" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wind Farra Lmited's” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wi SE Bradiord Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WEE Fullavington Howings Urmited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE Fullavington Lrmnited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generaticn
WSE Park Waill Limitea™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
WEE Pyde Drove Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Zestec Azset Managernent Limited ™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Rooftop Solar (BBD) Lirited e 09/08/2022
Cuckoo Interret Lid 31/08/2022
Vitrifi Digial Limmired 13/07/2022
40h Limited 22/11/2022

sutsidieries exempt fror augit by virtue of 34804 of the Comparues Act 2006
TSubsidianes exemnpt frorm auddt by virtue of s479A of the Comparses Act 2006
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

D:ssolved or sold durmg the  year and up unhl sugnmg Date

95 Lirted 20/07/2021
Ridge wWing ALquisition Limited 20/G772021

rern Erergy SicgeWird Acguisiions Limited 14/09/2021
Fern Energy RizgeWind Heldings Limitad 21/09/2021
Fern Energy ~arnersnios Holdings Lirnited 21/09/2021

Fraisthorpe Holding! Lirnired 25/03/2022
Oy Gldhai Energy Recovery Limited 13/09/2022
Commzl Ld 15/0G/2022
Larlngton Point Holaco Pty Lirites 0g/07/2022
08/07/2022
Carlington Foint Subkaldco Pty Limited 08/07/2022

Dartrglon Poirt Solar Farm Pty Lirried

Neordic Power Develoormert Lmvad 23/12/2021
‘-v/jyrmkangas Wirg Farm Oy 23/12/2021

Saunaraz Wind Farm Oy 23/1212021

B T T IO SRR T Ry TS Py THRed T Ehawes ! SRvtea Ren SSasn L ok TEERRa TEMBIa L SPEROL.

Tha registered office of at companies sied above i3 at 6ih Fioor, 23 Holborn, Leondan, Englanc, ZC1N 247
excent for thase tet out below

CWarsaw, Polard

ul. Grzybowska 2/29, 057

2. Pinsent Masons LLP, Captal Square, 58 Marrison Sreet, Edirburgh, Scotlans, FHE 8BF

2. 1 Wezt Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 1AF
4 22 rue Alprorse de hewville, 75G17 Pans, Fra
5 & Rloor, 2 Grand Caral Square, Duklr 2, 202 A3Z2, ireend

6. The Carriage House, Station Works, Station Rcac. Claverdon, Warwicksrire Urited K ngdaorm, CVZS 8PE

7 Zone industrielle de Tourtine 115 Rue Du Moureiet 84500 Avignon, France
8 13 Za. SDLIY P  London, Br g'lang, WIH 2=

9  The Corporatior Trust Comipany, Corporatior Trust Center, 1209 Cranae Streel, Wilm agree 19301

ke Siates

L AT moor Sacire Cour, 20 Caste Te
1 Anoho Bouse, Mertury Park Wycomaoe Lare, Wootur Green, b go Wycomeoe, Engaara, HPLT G-H
120 Levei 33 101 Colne Streer, Metbiourne, Yictana, 3000, Aust-ala

* sy ey =y = Lo L - = . e e WAITTLA R D
13 Besufort Court, Egg Farr Lane, Mings wa=gley dertforostire, Wid B0R

LRSI

id /-3 Statiora Place, Lorcon, Engand Wi LAY

ihe directors ceueve trat tre carrying valus of the nvestmenis s sucoored by trar undenying et assets



5 APPENDIX — SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

I

Ferri Trading Limited is an unlisted company Every rmonth, aur Board of Directors agrees a price at whichn 1t
weil De willing to issue new shares The share crice is unaddited,

The figures below include the share once of the previous parent (now Fern Trading Group Limited) as weil
as this entizy.

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18 ™

17 f

16 MWM‘“’“}
15 W et e
1.4 W

13 M e
12 IR
11
10

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performance 13 calculated based on the sale price for Fern's snares at 2 June each year The share price s
rot subject to audit by Ernst & Young LLP,

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year

uin S e v Eadn o

Discrete share price performance

June 2021-22 9.91%
J-ume 2026-2& - - 4.87%
Jgae zp—gzo S e e e 033%
June 2058-19 6.23%
Ju-ﬁ-em 2-0‘;6:1-7 . o . B - R 5.54“-%‘ |
June 2015-16 - 3;53%

June 2014-15 3.98%

June 2013-14 3.72%
June 2012-13 3.97%
June 201112 1.02%
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6 | COMPANY INFORMATION
Directors and advisers
Directors ! Registered office
S Latnam I oeth Fioor, 23 Holoorn,
K5 Widey i _ondan, Englang ECTN 2HT
PG Bariow
[ Arthur laoponted 1wy 2022 P ingdependent auditorn
st & Young LLP
Comipany secratary : Bediord rouse,
Cctopos Comzany Secretanal bervices Lmited {16 Radford Siree,
P Belfast BT2 70T
Lompany number :

12501536

Forward-looking staternents

iz Annual Xeport conlams ceran forward-oo

and fimancia performance ard future events or de
knowledce and expactatons 0° manageren:

a T
of whnich are related to factors that are beyord the contret of the Company Accord' ngly, no assurance can

ts regarding nast rerds or

De given that any particular excectation will be mer and forward-looxirg statems

™

performance cannot be relied on as a guide o future perforrance Nothimg n this Anrual Report shoud be

construed as a oroft forecast




